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March 22, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health and the
Division of Public Health Services to exercise a renewal option to an existing agreement with Concord
Hospital, Inc. (Vendor# 177653-8003), 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301, for the provision of
laboratory, pathology and employee health services by increasing the price limitation by $570,000 from
$1,210,000 to $1,780,000 and by extending the contract end date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2021,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 3% Federal funds, 35% General Funds, 62%
Other Funds (Medicare. Medicaid & third party insurance).

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 22, 2015
(Item #22), and amended on August 24, 2016 (Item #17), and on June 21, 2017 (Item #47).

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020 and SFY 2021, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust
budget line item amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-095-940010-87500000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE
PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

SFY
Class/

Object
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

Budget

2015 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $129,000 $0 $129,000

2016 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $258,000 $0 $258,000

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $258,000 $0 $258,000

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $260,000 $0 $260,000

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $270,000 $0 $270,000

2020 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $0 $270,000 $270,000

2021 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 94057300 $0 $280,000 $280,000

Subtotal $1,175,000 $550,000 $1,725,000



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-90-90-902510-5084 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC
HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS - EBOLA

SFY Class/ Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027030 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Subtotal $10,000 $0 $10,000

010-090-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC
HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

SFY Class/ Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $5,000 $0 $5,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $5,000 $0 $5,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $0 $5,000 $5,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $0 $5,000 $5,000

Subtotal $10,000 $10,000 $20,000

05-95-90-903010-8280 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES, BIOMONITORING
GRANT

SFY Class/ Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90082801 $10,000 $0 $10,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90082801 $5,000 $0 $5,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90082801 $0 $5,000 $5,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90082801 $0 $5,000 $5,000

Subtotal $15,000 $10,000 $25,000

Total $1,210,000 $570,000 $1,780,000
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to continue providing employee health services for New Hampshire
Hospital, NH Public Health Laboratories and Bureau of Infectious Disease. These employee health
services are necessary due to the possible exposures to various biological agents and/or chemicals and
health hazards encountered while completing their daily job duties.

The health services provided by the vendor include screenings and testing for chemical exposure,
infectious and communicable diseases and/or recognized illnesses such as Hepatitis 8. Measles, Mumps
and drug resistant Tuberculosis. Services also include offering immunizations to employees when
necessary. In addition, the vendor will provide all pathology and laboratory services, which include
laboratory services that meet the requirements of The Joint Commission, the Clinical Laboratory
Improvement Act of 1988 (CLIA). as amended, or any other applicable accrediting bodies.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this agreement
provides the Department the option to extend contract services for up to four (4) years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor
and Council. The Department is exercising this renewal option for two (2) years. Two (2) years of renewal
have already been used, leaving no renewal options available after this amendment.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennium.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the health risks of some
Department employees is increased. Occupational health services protect employees from the risks and
hazards in the workplace including injury prevention as well as reducing the spreading of infectious
diseases and viruses. Additionally, these services will reduce the effects of employee exposure to toxic
chemicals and other hazards.

Area served: Statewide and the New Hampshire Hospital population

Source of Funds: New Hampshire Hospital: 35% General Funds, 62% Other Funds (Medicare,
Medicaid & third party insurance), and for DPHS: 3% Federal Funds - CFDA#93.070/ FAIN#
U88EH001142 and CFDA#93.074/FAIN#U90TPP921910.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

ctfully submitted.es

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparlment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Laboratory and Pathology Services and
Employee Health Services Contract

This S"' Amendment to the Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Sen/ices contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") dated this 2"^ day of January, 2019, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Concord Hospital (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 250 Pleasant Street, Concord NH 03301.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 22, 2015 (Item #22), as amended on August 24, 2016 (Item #17) and June 21, 2017 (Item #47)
the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

vyHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the State may modify the scope of work, the payment schedule and
the term of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2  Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,780,000.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631.

5  Delete Exhibit 8-3, Laboratory Fee Schedule and replace with Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3,
Laboratory Fee Schedule.

6. Delete Exhibit 8-4, Occupational Health Services and Costs and replace with Exhibit B-4,
Amendment #3. Occupational Health Services and Costs.

Concord Hospital Amendment #3

15-DHHS-DCBCS-NHH-11 Page 1 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

-V.37 /1 ?
Datd '

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

U>JU Sh*hi'n^i^
Title: ^£0

Dat

Concord Hospital

Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of. /X) , County of <-K on_ -/r- /9 before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justiee Peace-

Name and Title of Notary ur Ju&tfde of the Peace

My Commission Expires: . //-//•

m
SfS: COMMISSION
=5: EXPIRES

NOV. IS.2020 : i

Concord Hospilal
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Concord Hospital
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Exhibit B-3, Amendment U3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

Price SFY2020-

lONG DESCRIPTION COM CPT SPY 2021

88161AP Bill Cytopath, Smears Prep, Screen, Interpretation 7520377 88161 S 24.50

88162 AP Bill Cytopath, Smear, Extended Study 7520378 88162 S 32.01

88300 AP Bill Surgical Pathology Level 1 Complexity 2300 88300 S 16.40

88302 AP Bill Surgical Pathology Level II Complexity 2302 88302 $ 36.10

88304 AP Bill Surgical Pathology Level III Complexity 2304 88304 $ 43.30

88305 AP Bill Surgical Pathology Level IV Complexity 2305 88305 S 56.10

88305 AP Bill Surgical Pathology Level IV Prostate Only 7797410 88305 S 56.10

88307 AP Bill Surgical Pathology Level V Complexity 2307 88307 S 112.40

88309 AP Bill Surgical Pathology Level VI Complexity 2309 88309 $ 154.90

88311 AP Bill Decalcification 295360 88311 S 5.14

88312 AP Bill Special Stains Group 1 2312 88312 S 10.20

88341 AP Bill Surg IPX {Add'l Antibody) 2960 88341 $ 35.20

88342 AP Bill Surg IPX (First Antibody) 2960 88342 S 35.20

88360 AP Bill ER/PR/Her2neu 2965 88360 S 49.18

Acetaminophen Level 1503764 G0480 $ 7.70

Acute Hepatitis Panel 633756 80074 $ 54.50

aHepA 7516612 86708 s 14.50

aHepARfIx 7516613 86708 s 14.48

aHepBs 1628908 86706 $ 12,60

Alanine Aminotransferase 633632 84460 $ 6.20

Albumin Level 1620877 82040 s 5.80

Alcohol Level 1503765 G0480 s 12.60

Alcohol Level, Urine 7516545 G0480 s 14.80

Alkaline Phosphatase 1620878 84075 $ 6.10

Ammonia Level 1628880 82140 $ 17.00

Amylase Level 631567 82150 s 7.60

Amylase Level, Urine Random 4185033 82150 s 7.60

Anti-Nuclear Antibodies Screen with Reflex 633655 86038 s 14.10

Aripipazole and Metabolite Levels-ARUP 7528042 80342 $ 56.70

Arsenic Blood-ARUP 7527524 82175 $ 37.03

Arsenic Urine w/ Reflex to Fractionated-ARUP 7527516 82175 s 37.03

Aspartate Aminotransferase 633633 84450 $ 6.10

B2glycoprotein 1 IgG, IgM, IgA Antibodies-ARUP 7527490 86146 $ 20.02

Basic Metabolic Panel 633628 80048 $ 9.90

Bilirubin Level, Body Fluid 4185575 82247 s 3.80

Bilirubin, Direct 4240528 82248 s 5.90

Bilirubin, Total 7516686 82247 s 5.90

Blood Urea Nitrogen 633605 84520 $ 4.60

Borrelia burgdorferi C6 Acute Panel-ARUP 7583158 86618 $ 64.68

C. trachomatis (TMA) 7520792 87491 $ 30.00

C. trachomatis (TMA) 7520798 87491 5 30.00

Calcium Level, 24 Hour Urine 633687 82340 s 7.10

Calcium Level, Total 1628887 82310 s 6.00

Calcium Level, Urine Random 4185058 82310 $ 7.10

Cancer Antigen 125 4240559 86304 s 24.30

Carbamazepine Level 4123321 80156 $ 12.50

Carbon Dioxide (C02) 633667 82374 $ 5.00

Carcinoembryonic Antigen 633697 82378 $ 19.40

Ceruloplasmin-ARUP 7527291 82390 s 25.00

Chloride Level 633621 82435 s 5.40

Chloride Level, Urine Random 4185628 82436 s 4.90

Concord Hospital

15-DHHS-DCBCS-NHH-ll

Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3

lofe

Contractor Initials

Date ipZfu



Exhibit B-3, Amendment ff3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

Cholesterol Level, Body Fluid 4185611 84999 S 3.80

Cholesterol Total 633705 82465 S 5.10

CK 7044214 82550 $ 7.60

Clomlpramine and Metabolite, SP-ARUP 7527245 80335 $ 42.00

Clostridium difficile Toxin, PCR 7516568 87493 S 13.40

Clozapine Level-ARUP 7527242 80159 S 13.00

Complete Blood Count with Differential 633683 85025 S 7.10

Complete Blood Count with Manual Differential 633682 85027 S 5.71

Complete Blood Count without Differential 3798345 85027 $ 5.70

Comprehensive Metabolic Panel 633709 80053 S 12.40

Cortisol 3352314 82533 s 19.10

Cortisol AM 7516589 82533 s 24.12

Cortisol Level, 30 Minute 3455080 82533 $ 19.05

Cortisol Level, 60 Minute 3455081 82533 s 19.05

Cortisol PM 7516590 82533 s 19.05

Cortisol, Baseline 633710 82533 s 19.05

C-Reactive Protein 1628890 86140 $ 6.10

C-Reactive Protein High Sensitivity (CV Risk) 3454330 86141 $ 20.30

Creatine Kinase 633712 82550 $ 7.60

Creatine Kinase - MB Isoenzyme 633713 82553 s 9.10

Creatinine Level, 24 Hour Urine 7516591 82570 s 8.50

Creatinine Urine 7038212 82570 $ 3.20

Creatinine Urine, Random 1930782 82570 $ 6.05

Creatinine, Enzymatic 7516592 82565 s 6.00

DDimer, Quantitative 3454398 85379 s 13.82

Digoxin Level 1628891 80162 s 15.50

Drugs of Abuse Screen, Urine Toxicology 3454403 80306 s 20.40

Duloxetine Quantitative-ARUP 7529696 80332 $ 197.00

Electrolyte Panel 633610 80051 $ 7.20

Erythrocyte Sedimentation Rate 7516673 85652 s 3.20

Escitalopram Quantitative-ARUP 7529702 80332 s 164,00

Estradiol Level 3170319 82670 $ 32.70

Fecal Leukocytes 4123047 87205 $ 5.00

Fecal Occult Blood (Guaiac), Diagnostic 7520344 82272 s 3.80

Fecal Occult Blood (Guaiac), Screening 633789 82270 $ 3.80

Ferritin 1628893 82728 s 15.90

Fluoxetine and Metabolite Levels-ARUP 7526866 80332 $ 20.00

Fluphenazine Level-ARUP 7526863 80342 s 61.30

Fluvoxamin Level-ARUP 7526860 80332 s 121.00

Folate Level 1628894 82746 s 17.20

Follicle Stimulating Hormone Level 3170314 83001 $ 21.70

Free Thyroxine Level 3170324 84439 $ 10.60

Free Triiodothyronine Level 3170323 84481 s 11.80

Gabapentin Level-ARUP 7526837 80171 s 20.00

GGT(6amma Glutamyl Transferase) 1628895 82977 s 7.40

Glucose Level 633594 82947 $ 4.50

Glucose, Urine Random 4186827 81003 $ 2.00

Haloperidol Level-ARUP 7526772 80173 s 27.70

Haptoglobin-ARUP 7526769 83010 s 14.71

HCG Qualitative Urine 633664 81025 $ 7.40

HCG, Beta Qualitative, Serum 633663 84703 $ 8.80

HCG, Beta Quantitative, Serum 633665 84702 s 15.40

HCV Genotyping by PCR and Sequencing-ARUP 7526766 87902 $ 88.00

Concord Hospital
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Exhibit 8-3, Amendment #3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

HDL 3170344 83718 $ 8.40

Heavy Metals Panel 3 Urine with Reflex-ARUP 7526756 82175 S 37.03

Heavy Metals Panel 3, Blood-ARUP 7526753 82175 $ 37.03

Heavy Metals Panel 4, Blood-ARUP 7838426 82175 $ 37.03

Hematocrit 633742 85014 S 2.80

Hematocrit 1635636 85014 S 2.80

Hemoglobin 633741 85018 S 2.80

Hemoglobin 1635635 85018 S 2.80

Hemoglobin Ale (Glycosylated) 1383763 83036 S 11.30

Hepatic (Liver) Function Panel - LFTs 633744 80076 S 9.60

Hepatitis A Antibody, IgM 1628904 86709 $ 42,00

Hepatitis B Core Antibody, IgM (Acute) 1628907 86705 s 13.80

Hepatitis B Core Antibody, Total (IgM and IgG) 1628905 86704 $ 14.10

Hepatitis B Core Antibody, with Reflex to IgM 7516615 86704 s 14.10

Hepatitis B Surface Antigen 633752 87340 s 12.10

Hepatitis B Surface Antigen, Confirmatory 7516616 87341 s 12.10

Hepatitis C Antibody 7777213 86803 s 15.60

Hepatitis C Antibody, Total with Reflex to Quantitative NAAT 1628911 86803 s 15.60

Hepatitis C Virus by Quantitative NAAT with Reflex to HCV Genotype by Sequencir 7839384 87522 s 88.00

HIV Ag/Ab 633757 87389 $ 18.40

HSV 1 and/or 2 Abs, IgM by ELISA-ARUP 7526564 86694 s 12.32

HSV 1,2 IgG, IgM Abs-ARUP 7526573 86694 $ 12.32

HSV 1/2 IgG, IgM Ab Reflex-ARUP 7526570 86694 $ 12.32

Infectious Mononucleosis Screen 633785 86308 S 6.10

Influenza Panel, Polymerase Chain Reaction 7516625 87502 s 116.00

Influenza/Respiratory Syncytial Virus PCR Combo 7533188 87631 S 174.00

Insulin Level, Fasting 3454335 83525 S 25.50

iron Level 633765 83540 $ 7.60

Iron Level 7050169 83540 $ 7.60

Lactate Dehydrogenase 633770 83615 $ 7.10

Lamotrigine Level-ARUP 7526438 80175 $ 11.80

LDL, Direct 3170346 83721 S 12.96

Lead, Whole Blood Venous-ARUP 7526425 83655 s 14.20

Lipase Level 633776 83690 S 8.10

Lipase Level, Body Fluid 3454337 83690 s 9.70

Lipid Pnl 633777 80061 s 15.70

Lithium Level 2046348 80178 $ 5.70

Lupus Anticoagulant Reflexive Panel-ARUP 7526373 85610 s 6.02

Luteinizing Hormone 4240834 83002 S 21.60

Lyme 7516636 86618 s 23.12

Magnesium Level 633781 83735 S 6.90

Mercury Blood-ARUP 7526293 83825 s 30.90

Microalbumin Level, Urine Random 7516639 82043 s 6.30

Mumps Screen, IgG 3454449 86735 $ 25,50

N. gonorrhoeae (TMA) 7520793 87591 $ 30.00

N. gonorrhoeae (TMA) 7520795 87591 $ 30.00

N. gonorrhoeae (TMA) 7520799 87591 s 30.00

Norovirus Gl PCR 7533375 87798 s 68.75

Norovirus Gil PCR 7647876 87798 s 68.75

Nortriptyline Level-ARUP 7526152 80335 s 14.78

N-Terminal Pro B-Type Natriuretic Peptlde 1503769 83880 $ 39.70

Olanzapine Level-ARUP 7526143 80342 $ 70.80

Opiates Quantitative, Urine-ARUP 7526115 80361 $ 22.00

Concord Hospital
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Exhibit B-3, Amendment

Laboratory Fee Schedule

Osmoiality, 24 Hour Urine 7516652 83935 S 8.00

Osmoiality, Serum 4186066 83930 S 7.70

Osmoiality, Urine Random 4186098 83935 S 8.00

Oxcarb or Eslicarb Metabolite (MHO)-ARUP 7526059 80183 S 24.60

Paliperidone Level-ARUP 7529745 80342 $ 25.70

Paroxetine Quantitation-ARUP 7526045 80332 S 111.10

Partial Thromboplastin Time 633794 85730 S 7.00

Perphenazine Level-ARUP 7529756 80342 S 61.30

pH, Urine Random 7516658 81003 $ 2.04

Phenobarbital Level-ARUP 7526036 80184 $ 13.40

Phenytoin Level 633801 80185 S 15.50

Phosphorus Level 633803 84100 S 5.50

Platelet Count 2182297 85049 S 4.57

Potassium Level 633616 84132 $ 4.70

Potassium Level, 24 Hour Urine 633618 84133 $ 5.00

Potassium Level, Urine Random 4185373 84133 S 4.90

Preaibumin, Serum 3454341 84134 S 17.00

Primidone and Metaboiite-ARUP 7525948 80188 S 15.40

Progesterone Level 3454459 84144 S 24.40

Prolactin 3170316 84146 $ 19.80

Prostate Specific Antigen, Diagnostic 1634882 84153 S 17.00

Prostate Specific Antigen, Screening 4123035 84153 S 17.00

Protein, Total, 24 Hour Urine 633811 84156 $ 4.20

Protein, Total, Urine Random 4186691 84156 $ 4.20

Prothrombin Time and INR 633793 85610 $ 4.60

PTH-INT 7516654 83970 S 56.06

Quantiferon TB Gold Plus-ARUP 7525885 86480 $ 49.50

Quetiapine Levei-ARUP 7529083 80342 S 124.30

Renal Function Panel 1634883 80069 S 10.10

Resp PnlPCR 7516665 87633 $ 509.40

Reticulocyte Count with Immature Reticulocyte Fraction 3454466 85046 S 4.70

Rheumatoid Factor 3454344 86431 S 6.60

Risperidone and Metabolite S/P-ARUP 7528140 80342 S 100.00

Rubella Immune Status 7516671 86762 $ 16.30

Rubeola Immune Status 7516672 86765 S 15.10

Saiicylate Level 1503768 G0480 S 8.20

Sertraline Level-ARUP 7525815 80332 S 61.00

Sodium Level 633611 84295 $ 5.40

Sodium Level, 24 Hour Urine 633613 84300 $ 5.70

Sodium Level, Urine Random 4185817 84300 $ 5.70

Specific Gravity, Urine Random 4126646 81003 S 2.04

Streptococcus Group A Antigen 7516679 87880 S 10.20

Streptococcus Group A Antigen with Reflex to Group A Streptococcus Culture 7516678 87880 $ 10.20

Syphilis Ab Screen w/Reflex 7532096 86780 $ 5.00

T3 Uptake 7516680 84479 S 6.70

Testosterone Total 7516681 84403 S 30.20

Theophylline Level 1634886 80198 $ 16.50

Thiothixene Level-ARUP 7529793 80342 $ 32.50

Thyroid Peroxidase Antibody 3454483 86376 S 22.00

Thyroid Stimulating Hormone 633844 84443 S 14.40

Thyroid Stimulating Hormone with Reflex to Free Thyroxine 7516689 84443 S 14.40

Thyroxine (T4), Total Level 633845 84436 $ 6.70

TIBC
7050172 83550 $ 10.20

Concord Hospital
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Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

Topiramate Level-ARUP

Trazodone Level-ARUP

Trichomonas vaginalis, Endocerv.

Trichomonas vaginalis, Vaginal

Trig

Trigiycerides, Body Fluid
Triiodothyronine (T3), Total Level
Troponin-I (Cardiac Marker)

Ur24 Microalb

Urea Nitrogen 24 Hour Urine

Urea Nitrogen, Urine Random

Uric Acid Level

Urinalysis Macroscopic Only

Urinalysis with Microscopic and Culture, If Indicated
Urinalysis with Microscopic, If Indicated

Urine Microscopic Only

Valproic Acid Level

Vancomycin Level, Peak

Varicella Zoster IgG Antibody Screen

Venlafaxine and Metabolites-ARUP

Vitamin B12 Level

Vitamin D 25 Hydroxy Level

White Blood Cell Count, with Absolute Neutrophil Count

Acid Fast Bacilli Culture

Acid Fast Stain Report

Blood Culture

Body Fluid Culture

Body Fluid Culture with Anaerobes
Bordetella Pertussis PCR and Culture

Concord Urology Urine Culture

Dialysate Culture

Eye Culture

Eye Culture with Anaerobes
Fungal Culture - Skin, Hair, Nail
Fungus Culture ■ Not Skin or Blood
Genital Culture

Gram negative identification (Vitek)
Gram Negative Sensitivity Panel (Vitek AST-GN70)
Gram positive identification (Vitek)

Gram Positive Sentivity Panel (Vitek AST-GP75)
Gram Stain Report

KB Alpha Streptococcus

KB Beta Streptococcus

KB fosfomycin

KB Haemophilus

KB Minocycline

KB P aeruginosa

KB Pip/Taz

KB-ln House Disks

Lower Respiratory Culture

Neisseria gonorrhoeae Culture

Shiga toxin

Skin/Superficial Wound Culture

7525680 80201 $ 39.50

7525660 80332 S 51.00

7520785 87661 $ 30.00

7516688 87661 $ 30.00

633852 84478 S 6.70

3454355 84478 S 4.30

633833 84480 $ 14.50

1634892 84484 S 11.50

3455400 82043 S 6.30

4186644 ,84540 $ 5.60

4186652 84540 s 5.60

633858 84550 s 5.30

633863 81003 s 2.30

1148021 81003 s 2.30

1148022 81003 S 2.30

633864 81015 s 3.60

3170351 80164 $ 11.60

1634896 80202 s 154.00

3454356 86787 s 15.10

7529862 80338 $ 56.70

633871 82607 $ 14.00

4240407 82306 s 15.30

633873 85048 s 2.25

4122762 87116 $ 12.60

634214 87206 s 6.30

4122800 87040 s 12.10

4122803 87070 $ 10.10

7532706 87070 $ 10.10

633885 87081 s 12.24

7520490 87086 $ 14.08

7520491 87070 s -

633892 87070 s 10.10

7532709 87070 $ 10.10

4123005 87101 s 9.80

7520482 87102 s 9.80

633894 87070 s 10.10

297662 87077 s 9.50

7538275 87186 s 10.10

297663 87077 s 9.50

7538593 87186 $ 10.10

634217 87205 s 5.00

7538506 87184 s 8.10

7538511 87184 $ 8.10

7538489 87184 s 8.10

7538526 87184 s 8.10

7538493 87184 $ 8.10

7538517 87184 s 8.10

7538491 87184 s 8.10

7538462 87184 s 8.10

7520487 87070 $ 10.10

633895 87081 s 6.70

7537803 87899 s 14.00

7520479 87070 $ 10.10

Concord Hospital

15-OHHS-DCBCS-NHH-ll

Exhibit B-3, Amendment ff3
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Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

Staph Aureus Screen Culture 4616217 87081 S 6.70

Stool Culture 633904 87046 S 11.00

Strep Group A Culture 7520494 87081 S 6.70

Tissue Culture 633906 87070 S 10.10

Upper Respiratory Culture 7520493 87070 S 10.10

Urine Culture 4126493 87086 S 7.50

VRE Culture 7520496 87081 S 6.70

Wound Aspirate/Abscess Culture 633908 87070 S 10.10

Wound Aspirate/Abscess Culture with Anaerobes 7532708 87070 $ 10.10

Yeast Culture - Not Skin or Blood 7520485 87102 $ 9.80

Yeast Culture - Skin,Hair,Nail 7520486 87101 S 9.00

Yeast Sensitivity Panel (Vitek AST-YS05) 7538588 87186 $ 10.10

••PRICES BASED ON UTILIZATION. ANY TESTS NOT ON THIS

LIST WILL BILL AT LIST PRICE

••Reflex testing may carry additional fees

Concord Hospital

15-DHHS-DCBCS-NHH-ll

Exhibit B-3, Amendment ff3
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and Exhibit B-4, Amendment #3
Employee Health Services Occupational Health Services and Costs

PRICE

Services

SFY

2020-2021

OH-INJECTION $  14.50

OH-RTTESTING (IN HOUSE) $  43.00

OH-CHEST CONTRACT PA&LAT /INTERP $  166.30

OH-PRE-PLACEMENTPCE $  55.00

S4(PT)-P0ST HIRE ASSESSMENT $  55.00

OH-TUBERCULIN PROTEIN $  7.50

OH-PRE-PLACEMENTSCREEN RN $  45.00

OH-RABIES VACCINE $  337.00

OH-RN DOCUMENT REVIEW $  10.00

OH-HEPATITISB VACCINE $  56.00

OH-MEASLES-MUMPS-RUBELLA VACCINE $  69.00

OH-VARICELLA VACCINE(CHICKEN POX) $  123.00

OH DIPHT -PERTUS- TETNUS(ADACEL) $  41.50

OH-VENIPUNCTURE $  15.50

OH-TB TEST READ ONLY $0.00

OH-TB READ - EXTERNAL CLINIC $0.00

OH-LEVEL 1 EXAM with provider $  40.00

OH-TB VACCINATION W/EXAM $  9.00

OH-SPIROMETRV W/INTERPRETATION $  60.00

OH-LEVEL 1 EXAM with provider - FACILITY $  20.00

Drug Screen using NHH Medical Director $  62.50

DOTPE W/URINE $  75.00

DOT DRUG SCREEN $  62.50

Non-DOT PE $  60.00

Non-DOTDRUG SCREEN $  62.50

PRE-PLACEMENT LIFT $  58.00

PRE-PLACEMENT RN $  45.00

RN CLEARANCE $  10.00

FIT TESTING
$  43.00

TB W/EXAM $  16.20

TB W/0 EXAM $  21.70

URINE DIP $  10.00

TdaP* $  56.00

Td TOXOID* $  47.50

HEPATITIS B* $  70.50

INFLUENZA* $  36.50

MMR* $  83.50

RABIES* $  351.50

VARICELLA* $  137.50

VENIPUNaURE $  15.50

HEPATITIS BTITER $  25.00

HIV
$  25.00

MEASLES TITER $  25.00

MUMPS TITER $  25.00

Concord Hospital

15-DHHS-DCBCS-NHH-ll

Exhibit B-4, Amendment #3

lof 2

Contractor Initials

Date



Laboratory and Pathology Services and Exhibit B-4, Amendment #3
Employee Health Services Occupational Health Services and Costs

■  ' PFUCE ■

Services

SFY

2020-2021

RUBELLA TITER $  20.11

RABIES TITER $  91.25

VARICELLA TITER $  25.00

Concord Hospital

15-DHHS-DCBCS-NHH-ll

Exhibit B-4, Amendment #3

2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Date



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CI-RTlPICATIr:

I, Williiiin M. G:ir(iricr. SLX,!VUir\' iifSiiUc ofilic Si:in; of New I ijunpsliirc. do licrcby ceriify thiit CONCORD HOSiM i Al.. INC. i.i
:i New l-liiiniisliire Noii|irolii Corporation rcgisierei! to iransael liiisincss in New Mainpsltirc on Jiiniiary 29. 19X5. I lurilicr ceriily
ihat all Icc.s and .loeiiiiients rennircd by ibo Seercinry ol'Siatc-s otncc have been receivctl aiu! is in yood standini; a.s far as this
olTice is eonecmctl.

Ihi.siness ID: 74948

Cci'iilicate N-.imber; 001)4077565

A%

•rr>&L.

I©

IN Ti:STIMONY Win-Ri.:OI-.

I hereto set niy hand and cause to be aili.sed

the Seal of die Stale ol'New l-iampshire.

iliis 2nd day of April A.I). 2018.

William M. Ciardncr

Secreiary of State



CERTIFICATE

I, William Chapman, Secretary of Concord Hospital, Inc. do hereby certify:

1) I maintain and have custody of and am familiar with the seal and minute books of
the corporation;

2) I am authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books and
to affix such seal to such certificates;

3) The following is a true and complete copy of the resolution adopted by the board of
trustees of the corporation at a meeting of that board on March 21, 2005 which
meeting was held in accordance with the taw of the state of incorporation and the
bylaws of the corporation:

The motion was made, seconded and the Board unanimously voted that the powers
and duties of the President shaii include the execution of aii contracts and other
iegai documents on behaifofthe corporation, unless some other person is
specifically so designated by the Board, by law, or pursuant to the administrative
policy addressing contract and expenditure approval levels.

4) the foregoing resolution's in full force and effect, unamended, as of the date
hereof; and

5) the following persons lawfully occupy the offices indicated below:

Robert P. Steigmeyer, President
Scott W. Sloane, Chief Financial Officer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary of the
Corporation this /^'^av of . 20 .

(Corporate seal)
Secretary

State of: f\jt\^

County of:

On this, the JC ̂ dau of . 20 19. before me a notary public, the
undersigned officer, personally appeared (j2,ll,aih y)/XiaXl , known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
within instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for the
purposes therein contained.

^reof I hereunto set my hand and official seal

-;ms Notary PubUc
%l I j! ( 7

% ffbf. My Commission expires: //'/s'Z^



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

MARSH USA, INC.

99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON, MA 02110
Atln: Boston.certrequestgMarsh.com

CN1O7277O64-CHSflen0r.19-2O

TORTACT
NAME:

phone ^ .
lAlC. Nn F*H- (A/C.Nol:
E-MAIL
AnnRF.SS:

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Granite Shield Insurance Exchanae

INSURED

CAPITAL REGION HEALTHCARE CORPORATION
& CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC.
ATTN: KATHYLAMONTAGNE, ADMINISTRATION
250 PLEASANT STREET
CONCORD. NH 03301

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-010622549-01 REVISION NUMBER: 1

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFFjrecmet? POUCY 6XP
UMITSINSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE ItiSQ.

COMMEROAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE E OCCUR

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY O JECT I I LOC
OTHEE

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

OWAIED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OViAIED
AUTOS ONLY

POLICY NUMBER

GSlE-PRIM-2019-101

tMM/DO/YYYYI

01/01/2019

(MM/DD/YYYYl

01/01/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufrerwet

MED EXP (Any one pefon)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPXJP AGO

CDhlfii^ebSi^LE LiMiT
IEb ecddeni)

BODILY INJURY (Per p«r»on)

BODILY INJURY (Psr scxMeflt)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer aedflenti

2,000,000

12,000,000

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS- UABIUTY

ANYPROPRIETORff'ARTNeR/EXECUTIVE
0FFICERJMEM6ER EXCLUDED?
(Mindttory In NH)
II yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

STATUTE
W
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

Professional Liability GSIE-PRIM-2019-101 01/01/2019 01/01/2020 SEE ABOVE

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddtUonsI Remirks Schedule, miy be ittached If more space Is required)
GENERAL LIABILITY AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY SHARE A COMBINED LIMIT OF 2,000.000/12,000,000, HOSPITAL PROFESSIONAL UABIUTY RETROACTIVE DATE 6/24/1985. EACH OCCURRENCE
AND AGGREGATE UMITS ARE SHARED AMONGST THE GRANITE SHIELD EXCHANGE HOSPITALS.

CANCELLATION

State of NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

of Marsh USA Inc.

Elizabeth Stapleton
TT

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CAPIREG-01 DMCDONALD

/XCORD'
DATE {MhWDO/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certifiriiift firiAfi not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsementfs).

PRODUCER License #1780862
HUB International New England
100 Central Street Suite 201
Holllston, MA 01746

Dan McDonald

wc^N^ E-Ii: (508) 808-7293 1 wc. noI:(866) 235-7129
lfY)nli<i<!-dan.mcdonald(a>hublnternational.com

INSllRERfSt AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A Safety National Casualty CorDoration 15105

INSURED

Capital Region Healthcare Corporation
250 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

INSURERS

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR
LIB.

TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL
INSD

SU8R
WVD POUCY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
tMMfOrWYYYYl

POUCY EXP
tMMfDD>YYYYl

UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE | " | OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMAQETO_RENTEO
imncaL

MED EXP (Any ona perton)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q n "-oc
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddenil

ANY AUTO

OViNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per pcftonl

ONLY

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS BODILY INJURY IPw acdderw)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acdOenlT

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREG^E

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABiUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, descntw under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

f I n SP4059434 10/01/2018 10/01/2019

Y PER
^ STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT

E.L DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE S

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD101, Addltlofuil Remsrks Schedule, mey be etuehed If more epece le required)
Evidence of Workers Compensation coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

r
ACORD 25(2016/03) 11988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Concord Hospital Mission Statement

Concord Hospital is a charitable organization
which exists to meet the health needs of individuals

within the communities it serves.

It is the established policy of Concord Hospital to provide services on the sole basis of the medical necessity
of such services as determined by the medical staff without reference to race, color, ethnicity, national origin,

sexual orientation, marital status, religion, age, gender, disability, or inability to pay for such services.

Approved by Board of Trustees 10-21-02; Reaffirmed by Board 11-23-03,11-15-04.11-21-05, 11-20-06, 11-19-07, 11-17-08, 11-16-09,10-18-10, 9-19-11, 9-24-12, 9-23-13, 9-22-14, 9-28-15,
9-26-16,9-25-17, 9-24-18
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Trustees

Concord Hospital, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Concord Hospital, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the System), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30,2018 and 2017,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial .statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the System as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

LVC

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 5, 2018



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30,2018 and 2017

ASSETS

(In thousands)

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $15,037 in 2018 and $11,234 in 2017

Due from affiliates

Supplies
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets whose use is limited or restricted:

Board designated
Funds held by trustee for workers' compensation

reserves, self-insurance escrows and construction funds
Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted

Other noncurrent assets:

Due from affiliates, net of current portion
Other assets

Total other noncurrent assets

Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Net property and equipment

2018 2017

$  4,691 $ 3,799
30,553 7,552

70,261

659

2,079
5.262

113,505

55,978

40.431

768

13.344

14,112

6,942

195,301
292,694

7.044

51,344

634

1,777
5.855

70,961

297,243 290,686

16,515
40.350

393,652 347,551

1,223
15.052

16,275

6,426

190.585
246.586
38.725

501,981 482,322
f332.923^ f305.312)

169.058 177.010

: 690-327 $ 611.7?7



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

(In thousands)

Current liabilities:

Short-term notes payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related expenses
Accrual for estimated third-party payer settlements
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

2018

36,190
26,646
35,378

9.061

107,275

128,463

48.302

368,060
17,580
20.647

2017

$  15

39,611

25,580
27,382

8.822

101,410

76,501

60.536

284,040 238,447

335,148
17,800
20.402

406,287 373,350

$ 611.797

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

Unrestricted revenue and other support:
Net patient service revenue, net of

contractual allowances and discounts

Provision for doubtful accounts

Net patient service revenue less
provision for doubtful accounts

Other revenue

Disproportionate share revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total unrestricted revenue and other support

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies and other
Purchased services

Professional fees

Depreciation and amortization
Medicaid enhancement tax

Interest expense

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Nonoperating income:
Unrestricted gifts and bequests
Investment income and other

Net periodic benefits cost, other than service cost

Total nonoperating income

Excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses

2018 2017

$492,647 $468,347

(29329) (2P.018)

463,318 448,329

20,496 19,350

14,327 12,717

2.112 1,191

500,253 481,587

233,356 220,255

52,130 51,723

98,713 95,948

43,352 32,373

6,531 5,222
27,574 24,378

20,975 20,311

4.873 2.918

487.504 453.128

12,749 28,459

317 1,619
12,878 10,476
f2.880^ t5.166)

10.315

S 23.064

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

2018 2017

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses $ 23,064 $ 35,388

Net unrealized gains on investments 1,805 23,122

Net transfers (to) from affiliates (35) 498

Net assets released from restrictions used for

purchases of property and equipment 479 108

Pension adjustment 7.599 13.098

Increase in unrestricted net assets 32,912 72,214

Temporarily restricted net assets:
Restricted contributions and pledges 1,357 1,423

Restricted investment income 1,078 682

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations (222) (163)

Net unrealized gains on investments 158 1,864

Net assets released from restrictions for operations (2.112) (1,191)

Net assets released from restrictions used for

purchases of property and equipment f479^ (108)

(Decrease) increase in temporarily restricted net assets (220) 2,507

Permanently restricted net assets:
Restricted contributions and pledges 197 126

Unrealized gains on trusts administered by others 48 395

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 245 521

Increase in net assets 32.937 75,242

Net assets, beginning of year 373.350 298.108

Net assets, end of year $406.287 $373.350

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Restricted contributions and pledges
Depreciation and amortization
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments
Bond premium and issuance cost amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts

Equity in earnings of affiliates, net
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment
Pension adjustment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Supplies, prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets

Due from affiliates
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related expenses
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements
Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in property and equipment, net
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sales of investments

Equity distributions from affiliates
Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Bond issuance costs

Change in short-term notes payable
Restricted contributions and pledges

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure:
At September 30,2017, amounts totaling $10,918 related

to the purchase of property and equipment were included
in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

^  4.691

2018 2017

32,937 S:  75,242

(1,554) (1,549)
27,574 24,378

(12,762) (29,975)
(317) (75)

29,329 20,018

(5,539) (5.812)
(84) 202

(7,599) (13,098)

(48,246) (18,669)
291 (1,610)

2,495 (3.702)
430 28

7,497 (1,411)
1,066 2,750
7,996 4,923

(4.635) (25.624)

28,879 26,016

(30,456) (34,132)
(87,949) (66,306)
31,793 72,671
4.752 6.310

(81,860) (21,457)

(8.816) (8,571)
62,004 -

(670) -

(15) (444)
1.370 1.700

53.873 (7.315)

892 (2.756)

3.799 6.555

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Concord Hospital, Inc., (the Hospital) located in Concord, New Hampshire, is a not-for-profit acute care
hospital. The Hospital provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for
residents within its geographic region. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.
The Hospital is controlled by Capital Region Health Care Corporation (CRHC).

In 1985, the then Concord Hospital underwent a corporate reorganization in which it was renamed and
became CRHC. At the same time, the Hospital was formed as a new entity. All assets and liabilities of
the former hospital, now CRHC, with the exception of its endowments and restricted funds, were
conveyed to the new entity. The endowments were held by CRHC for the benefit of the Hospital, which
is the true party in interest. Effective October I, 1999, CRHC transferred these funds to the Hospital.

In March 2009, the Hospital created The Concord Hospital Trust (the Trust), a separately incorporated,
not-for-profit organization to serve as the Hospital's philanthropic arm. In establishing the Trust, the
Hospital transferred philanthropic permanent and temporarily restricted funds, including board
designated funds, endowments, indigent care funds and specific purpose funds, to the newly formed
organization together with the stewardship responsibility to direct monies available to support the
Hospital's charitable mission and reflect the specific intentions of the donors who made these gifts.
Concord Hospital and the Trust constitute the Obligated Group at September 30, 2018 and 2017 to
certain debt described in Note 6.

Subsidiaries of the Hospital include:

Capital Region Health Care Development Corporation (CRHCDC) is a not-for-profit real estate
corporation that owns and operates medical office buildings and other properties.

Capital Region Health Ventures Corporation fCRHVC) is a not-for-profit corporation that engages in
health care delivery partnerships and joint ventures. It operates ambulatory surgery and diagnostic
facilities independently and in cooperation with other entities.

The Hospital, its subsidiaries and the Trust are collectively referred to as the System. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, the Trust, CRHCDC and CRHVC. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Hospital to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
Hospital's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The Hospital's accounts receivable are primarily due from third-party payors and
amounts are presented net of expected contractual allowances and uncollectible amounts, including
estimated uncollectible amounts from uninsured patients. The Hospital's investment portfolio consists
of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. The Hospital's investment in one fund, the
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund, exceeded 10% of total Hospital investments as of September 30,
2018and 2017.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds with original maturities of three months or less,
excluding assets whose use is limited or restricted.

The Hospital maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Hospital has not experienced any losses on such accounts.

Supplies

Supplies are carried at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted-average method, or net realizable
value.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under workers' compensation
reserves and self-insurance escrows, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees, over which
the Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes, and donor-
restricted investments.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Investment
income (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) is included in the
excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses unless the income is restricted by donor or
law. Gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis. Unrealized gains
and losses on investments are excluded from the excess of revenues and nonoperating income over
expenses unless the investments are classified as trading securities or losses are considered other-than-
temporary. Periodically, management reviews investments for which the market value has fallen
significantly below cost and recognizes impairment losses where they believe the declines are other-
than-temporary.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The System has an irrevocable right to receive income earned on certain trust assets established for its
benefit. Distributions received by the System are unrestricted. The System's interest in the fair value of
the trust assets is included in assets whose use is limited and as permanently restricted net assets.
Changes in the fair value of beneficial trust assets are reported as increases or decreases to permanently
restricted net assets.

Investment Policies

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated (unrestricted) funds.

Endowment funds are identified as permanent in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events.

Temporarily restricted funds are temporary In nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the
donor or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with
specific identified spending objectives.

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets is designed to increase, with minimum risk, the inflation adjusted principal
and income of the endowment funds over the long term. The System targets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Spendine Policy for ApproDriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of
inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing tiie desired level of amiual funding to the
programs. The System has a current spending policy on various funds currently equivalent to 5% of
twelve-quarter moving average of the funds' total market value.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Orgflnizatlon and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounts Receivable and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the collectibility
of accounts receivable, the System analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its major
payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for
doubtful accounts. Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of revenue in
evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. For receivables associated with
services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, the System analyzes contractually due
amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a provision for doubtful accounts, if
necessary (for example, for expected uncollectible deductibles and copayments on accounts for which
the third-party payor has not yet paid, or for payers who are known to be having financial difficulties
that make the realization of amounts due unlikely). For receivables associated with self-pay patients
(which includes both patients without insurance and patients with deductible and copayment balances
due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill), the System records a provision for doubtful
accounts in the period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients
are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the standard rates (or the discounted rates if negotiated) and the amounts actually
collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance
for doubtful accounts.

The System's allowance for doubtful accounts for self-pay patients represented 82% and 71% of self-
pay accounts receivable at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The total provision for the
allowance for doubtful accounts was $29,329 and $20,018 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively. The System also allocates a portion of the allowance and provision for doubtful
accounts to charity care, which is not recorded as revenue. The System's self-pay bad debt writeoffs
increased $6,643, from $20,787 in 2017 to $27,430 in 2018. A substantial portion of the increase in self-
pay bad debt write-offs is attributed to the System's provision for certain accounts in 2017 that were not
formally written off until 2018.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase, or at fair value at time of donation for assets
contributed, less any reductions in carrying value for impairment and less accumulated depreciation.
The System's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major improvements and charge maintenance and
repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize; the cost of the related wsets
over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, depreciation
expense was $27,574 and $24,378, respectively.

The System has also capitalized certain costs associated with, property and equipment not yet in service.
Construction in progress includes amounts incurred related to major construction projects, other
renovations, and other capital equipment purchased but not yet placed in service. During 2018 and 2017,
the Hospital capitalized $ 167 and $509, respectively, of interest expense relating to various construction
projects. At September 30, 2018, the Hospital has outstanding construction commitments totaling
approximately $11.9 million for a new medical office building. Construction commenced in the
Summer of 2018.

10



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as unrestricted support, and
are excluded from the excess of revenues and nonoperating income over expenses, unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used
to acquire long-lived assets, arc reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about
how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when
the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the grant expenditures are
incurred.

Bond Issuance Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for construction and renovation projects and the original
issue discount or premium are amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. The original issue
discount or premium and bond issuance costs are presented as a component of bonds payable.

Charity Care

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates (Note 11). Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The System
uses an industry standard approach in calculating the costs associated with providing charity care. Funds
received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided for the years ended September 30,
2018 and 2017 were approximately $452 and $278, respectively.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use
has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction expires (when
a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets
are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported as either net assets released from restrictions for
operations (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used for purchases of
property and equipment (capital related items). Permanently restricted net assets,have been restncted
by donors to be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the s^e year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

11



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue

The System has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per
discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient
service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and
others for services rendered, Including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.
Changes in these estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year in which they occur. For
the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, net patient service revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations increased by approximately $2,900 and $1,300, respectively, due
to actual settlements and changes in assumptions underlying estimated future third-party settlements.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 34% and 5% and
32% and 5% of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex
and subject to interpretation.

The Hospital recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered.. For uninsured
patients, the Hospital provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest private insurance
payors. On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Hospital's uninsured patients
will be unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the Hospital records a significant
provision for doubtful accounts related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the System are reported at fair value at the date
the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and intentions to give are reported at fair value at
the date the condition is met. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets.

Excess ofRevenues and Nonoperatine Income Over Expenses

The System has deemed all activities as ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services
and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenue and expenses, except for unrestricted
contributions and pledges, the related philanthropy expenses and investment income which are recorded
as nonoperating income.

The consolidated statements of operations also include excess of revenues and nonoperating income over
expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues and
nonoperating income over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the change in net
unrealized gains and losses on investments other than trading securities or losses considered other than
temporary, permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services, pension
liability adjustments and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions
which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

12



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of SigniTicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Esiimated Workers' Compensation and Health Care Claims

The provision for estimated workers' compensation and health care claims includes estimates of the
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

Income Taxes

The Hospital, CRHCDC, CRHVC, and the Trust are not-for-profit corporations as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and are exempt from federal income taxes on related income
pursuant to Section 501 (a) of the Code. Management evaluated the System's tax positions and concluded
the System has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income
and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Advertisins Costs

The System expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled approximately $201 and $217
for the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-09), which requires revenue to be recognized when promised
goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the
System expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will replace most
existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. ASU 2014-09 is
effective for the System on October 1,2019. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the retrospective or
cumulative effect transition method. The System is evaluating the impact that ASU 2014-09 will have
on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU
2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the
discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. ASU
2016-02 is effective for the System on October 1, 2020, with early adoption permitted. Lessees (for
capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing
at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial
statements. The modified retrospective approach would riot require any transition accounting for leases
that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective
transition approach. The System is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU
2016-02 on the System's consolidated financial statements.

13



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Presentation ofFinancial Statements for Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958) (ASU 2016-14). Under ASU 2016-14, the existing three-category
classification of net assets (i.e., unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted) will be
replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily restricted and permanently restricted into a
single category called "net assets with donor restrictions". ASU 2016-14 also enhances certain
disclosures regarding board designations, donor restrictions and qualitative information regarding
management of liquid resources. In addition to reporting expenses by functional classifications, ASU
2016-14 will also require the financial statements to provide information about expenses by their nature,
along with enhanced disclosures about the methods used to allocate costs among program and support
functions. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the System's fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, with early
adoption permitted. The System is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU
2016-14 on the System's consolidated financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force) (ASU 2016-18), which provides
guidance on the presentation of restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash
flows. ASU 20I6-18 will be effective for the System's fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and early
adoption is permitted. ASU 2016-18 must be applied using a retrospective transition method. The
System is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this guidance on its consolidated financial
statements.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, Compensation — Retirement Benefits (Topic 715):
Improving the Presentation ofNet Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost
(ASU 2017-07). ASU 2017-07 will require that an employer report the service cost component of net
periodic pension cost in tlie same line item as other compensation costs arising from services rendered
by employees during the period. The other components of net periodic pension cost are required to be
presented in the income statement separately and outside a subtotal of income from operations, if one is
presented. ASU 2017-07 is effective for the System on October I, 2019, with early adoption permitted.
The System adopted ASU 2017-07 during the year ended September 30, 2018, which resulted in a
reclassification of $5,166 of net periodic benefits costs, excluding service costs, from operating expenses
to nonoperating expenses for the year ended September 30,2017.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (ASU 2018-08). Due to diversity in practice, ASU
2018-08 clarifies the definition of an exchange transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating whether
contributions are unconditional or conditional. ASU 2018-08 is effective for the System on October 1,
2019, with early adoption permitted. The System is currently evaluating the impact that ASU 2018-08
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain 2017 amounts have been reclassified to permit comparison with the 2018 consolidated financial
statements presentation format.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the System's fiscal year and
December 5, 2018, the date the consolidated flnancia! statements were available to be issued.

2. Transactions With Aflillates

The System provides funds to CRHC and its affiliates which are used for a variety of purposes. The
System records the transfer of funds to CRHC and the other affiliates as either receivables or directly
against net assets, depending on the intended use and repayment requirements of the fnnds. Generally,
funds transferred for start-up costs of new ventures or capital related expenditures are recorded as
charges against net assets. For the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017, transfers made to CRHC
were $(157) and $(114), respectively, and transfers received from Capital Region Health Services
Corporation (CRHSC) were $122 and $612, respectively.

A brief description of affiliated entities is as follows:

•  CRHSC is a for-profit provider of health care services, including an eye surgery center and assisted
living facility.

•  Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (CRVNA) provides home health
care services.

•  Riverbend, Inc. provides behavioral health services.

Amounts due the System, primarily from joint ventures, totaled $1,427 and $1,857 at September 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively. Amounts have been classified as current or long-term depending on the
intentions of the parties involved. Beginning in 1999, the Hospital began charging interest on a portion
of the receivables ($759 and $810 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively) with principal and
interest (6.75% at September 30, 2018) payments due monthly. Interest income amounted to $58 and
$52 for the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively.

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations from temporarily restricted net assets were
$222 and $163 in 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDlARrES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

3. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Short-term investments totaling $30,553 and $7,552 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, are
comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Assets whose use is limited or restricted are carried
at fair value and consist of the following at September 30:

2018 2017

Board designated funds:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,651 $ 3,582
Fixed income securities 22,555 22,805
Marketable equity and other securities 248,760 243,906
Inflation-protected securities \9y211

297,243 290,686

Held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves:
Fixed income securities 2,937 4,120

Self-insurance escrows and construction funds:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,912 1,740
Fixed income securities 33,593 2,209
Marketable equity securities —8^536 —M46

53,041 12,395

Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,459 5,937
Fixed income securities 1,832 1,848
Marketable equity securities 20,200 19,769
Inflation-protected securities 1,565 1,654
Trust funds administered by others 11,051 11,002

324 140Other
40.431 40.350

$m^

Included in marketable equity and other securities above are $172,826 and $173,052 at September 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively, in so called alternative investments and collective trust funds. See also
Note 14.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

3. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted (Continued)

Investment income, net realized gains and losses and net unrealized gains and losses on assets whose
use is limited or restricted, cash and cash equivalents, and other investments are as follows at
September 30:

2018 2017

Unrestricted net assets:

Interest and dividends

Investment income from trust funds administered by others
Net realized gains on sales of investments

Restricted net assets:

Interest and dividends

Net realized gains on sales of investments

Net unrealized gains on investments:
Unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets
Permanently restricted net assets

$ 4,344 $ |4,466
541 494

9.996 4.255

14,881 9,215

323 343

755 339

1.078 682

$15.959 -i: 9 «97

$  1,805 $23,122

158 1,864

48 395

In compliance with the System's spending policy, portions of investment income and related fees are
recognized in other operating revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Investment income, reflected in other operating revenue was $1,779 and $1,655 in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Investment management fees expensed and reflected in nonoperating income were $917 and $851 for
the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

3. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted fContinued)

The following summarizes the Hospital's gross unrealized losses and fair
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in
loss position at September 30,2018 and 2017:

values, aggregated by
a continuous unrealized

2018

Marketable equity
securities

Fund-of-funds

Collective trust funds

Less Than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized

Value

$  1,743

27,194

Losses

$  (234)
(917)

S28.937 sn.isn

12 Months or Longer

Fair Unrealized
Value Losses

$46,828

14.062

£60.890

$ (9,261)

f897)

Total

Fair

Value

$48,571
27,194
14.062

Unrealized

Losses

$ (9,495)
(917)
(897)

£(10-158) £89.827 £(11-309)

2017

Marketable equity
securities $36,725 $ (740)

Fund-of-funds 22,720 (332)
Collective trust funds 5.906 (94)

$13,064 $ (6,119) $49,789
.  22,720

5.906

(6.859)
(332)

(94)

£65.351 £(1.166) £13.064 £ (6-119) SJMXl SJ22M)

In evaluating whether investments have suffered an other-than-temporary decline, based on input from
outside investment advisors, management evaluated the amount of the decline compared to cost, the
length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than cost, the underlying creditworthmess of
the issuer, the fair values exhibited during the year, estimated future fair values and the System's in^tent
and ability to hold the security until a recovery in fair value or maturity. Based on evaluations of the
underlying issuers' financial condition, current trends and economic conditions, management believes
there are no securities that have suffered an other-than-temporary decline in value at September 30,2018
and 20)7.

4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The System has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the Plan), covering all eligible employees
of the System and subsidiaries. The Plan provides benefits based on an employee's years of service, age
and the employee's compensation over those years. The System's funding policy is to conmbute annual^
the amount needed to meet or exceed actuarially determined minimum funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of1974 (EKISA).

The System accounts for its defined benefit pension plan under ASC 715, Compensation
Benefits. This Statement requires entities to recognize an asset or liability for the overfunded or
underfunded status of their benefit plans in their financial statements.
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4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The following table summarizes the Plan's funded status at September 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Funded status:

Fair value of plan assets
Projected benefit obligation

Activities for the year consist of:
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid
Net periodic benefit cost

$ 235,752 $ 233,739
(•267.0721 (277.0751

26,584

11,582

16,256
14,283

The table below presents details about the System's defined benefit pension plan, including its funded
status, components of net periodic benefit cost, and certain assumptions used in determining the funded
status and cost:

Change in benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid
Other adjustments to benefit cost

Projected benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of.plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefit payments and administrative expenses

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status and amount recognized in
noncurrent liabilities at September 30

2018

$277,075
8,702

11,991
(5,612)

(26,584)
1.500

2017

$270,534

9,138
10,662

1,047
(16,256)

1.950

■$267.072 $277075

$233,739
12,597
16,000

(26.584j

$185,404
21,591
43,000

(16.2561

$235,752 $233.739

$(43.3361
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4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Amounts recognized as a change In unrestricted net assets during the years ended September 30, 2018
and 2017 consist of:

2018 2017

Net actuarial loss (gain) ^ f7 996t ^ (8 457)
Net amortized loss 97^ %7fi
Prior service credit amortization —^ ^

Total amount recognized $ (7i599) $(13,098)

Pension Plan Assets

The fair values of the System's pension plan assets as of September 30,2018 and 2017, by asset category
are as follows (see Note 14 for level definitions). In accordance with ASU 2015-07, certain investments
that are measured using the net value per share practical expedient have not been classified m the fair
value hierarchy.

2018 2017

Level 1 Level 1

Short-term investments:

Money market funds ^ ̂ ̂ ® '
Equity securities:
Common stocks 'O- ■
Mutual funds - international

Mutual funds - domestic 4470 s nil
Mutual funds - natural resources
Mutual funds - inflation hedge

Fixed income securities:

Mutual funds-REIT f̂
Mutual funds - fixed income \5,522 —

127,863 134,406

Funds measured at net asset value:
Equity securities: \
Funds-of-funds ^^'202 67,29y

Collective trust funds ' —

Total investments at fair value
!S233.739
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4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The target allocation for the System's pension plan assets as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, by asset
category are as follows:

2018 2017

Percentage Percentage

Target of Plan Target of Plan

Allocation Assets Allocation Assets

0-20% 13% 0-20% 18%

40-80% 64 40-80% 62

5-80% 7 5-80% 7

0-30% 16 0-30% 13

Short-term investments

Equity securities
Fixed income securities

Other

The funds-of-funds are invested with ten investment managers and have various restrictions on
redemptions. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately $10 million at September 30,2018
allows for semi-monthly redemptions, with 5 days' notice. One manager holding approximately
$7 million at September 30,2018 allows for monthly redemptions, with 15 days' notice. Five managers
holding amounts totaling approximately $38 million at September 30, 2018 allow for quarterly
redemptions, with notices ranging from 45 to 65 days. Two of the managers holding amounts of
approximately $11 million at September 30, 2018 allow for annual redemptions, with notice ranging
from 60 to 90 days. One of the managers holding amounts of approximately $5 million at September 30,
2018 allows for redemptions on a semi-annual basis, with a notice of 60 days. The redemption is further
limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption period. The collective trust funds allow
for daily or monthly redemptions, with notices ranging from 6 to 10 days. Certain funds also may include
a fee estimated to be equal to the cost the fund incurs in converting investments to cash (ranging from
0.5% to 1.5%) or are subject to certain lock periods.

The System considers various factors in estimating the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Among the factors considered include the historical long-term returns on plan assets, the current and
expected allocation of plan assets, input from the System's actuaries and investment consultants, and
long-term inflation assumptions. The System's expected allocation of plan assets is based on a
diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed income securities,
and real estate.

The System's investment policy for its pension plan is to balance risk and returns using a diversified
portfolio consisting primarily of high quality equity and fixed income securities. To accomplish this
goal, plan assets are actively managed by outside investment managers with the objective of optimizing
long-term return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and proper diversification. The
System monitors the maturities of fixed income securities so that there is sufficient liquidity to meet
current benefit payment obligations. The System's Investment Committee provides oversight of the plan
investments and the performance of the investment managers.
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4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Amounts included in expense during fiscal 2018 and 2017 consist of:

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service credit and loss
Other adjustments to benefits cost

2018 2017

$  8,702 $  9,138
11,991 10,662

(18,331) (15,627)
7,720 8,160
1.500 1-950

$ 11-582 $ 14.283Net periodic benefit cost

The accumulated benefit obligations for the plan at September 30, 2018 and 2017 were $251,736 and
$261,601, respectively.

2018 2017

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligation:
Discount rate 4.63% 4.29%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00 3.00

Weighted average assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rale 4.29% 4.03%
Expected return on plan assets 7.75 7.75
Cash balance credit rate 5.00 5.00
Rate of compensation increase 3.00 2.00

In selecting the long-term rate of return on plan assets, the System considered the average rate of earnings
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits of the plan. This included
considering the plan's asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the
plan, as well as the historical returns on the types of assets held and the current economic environment.

The loss and prior service credit amount expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2019
are as follows:

Actuarial loss $7,153
Prior service credit —fZil)

$6.906

The System funds the pension plan and no contributions are made by employees. The System funds the
plan annually by making a contribution of at least the minimum amount required by applicable
regulations and as recommended by the System's actuary. However, the System may also fund, the plan
in excess of the minimum required amount.
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4. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Cash contributions in subsequent years will depend on a number of factors including performance of
plan assets. However, the System expects to fund $ 16,000 in cash contributions to the plan for the 2019
plan year.

Benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

Year Ended September 30 Pension Benefits

2019 ^ 23,059
2020 \5,029
2021 16,268
2022

2023 18,539
2024-2028 105,746

Effective September 26, 2018, the Plan entered into a group annuity contract with Pacific Life Insurance
Company. The contract was purchased for certain retirees of the Plan. A total of 354 participants were
entitled to receive benefits purchased under the contract. Annuity payments for participants will
commence on January 1, 2019 and Pacific Life Insurance Company will assume the risk for participants
entitled to receive benefits purchased under this contract. The Plan paid premiums totaling $9,135 and
$9,241 in September 2018 and October 2018, respectively, relating to the purchase of the contract.

5. Estimated Third-Partv Paver Settlements

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party
payors follows;

Medicare

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are primarily paid at
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is
based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. In addition to this, the System is also reimbursed for
medical education and other items which require cost settlement and retrospective review by the fiscal
intermediary. Accordingly, the System files an annual cost report with the Medicare program after the
completion of each fiscal year to report activity applicable to the Medicare program and to determine
any final settlements.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule b^is.
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5. Estimated Third-Partv Favor Settlements (Continued)

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and DisproDortionate Share Payment

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement
Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of net patient service revenues in State fiscal years 2018 and 2017. The
amount of tax incurred by the System for 2018 and 2017 was $20,975 and $20,311, respectively.

In the fail of 2010, in order to.remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July I, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment
that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation
created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains.
DSH payments from the State are recorded within unrestricted revenue and other support and amounted
to $14,327 in 2018 and $12,717 in 2017, net of reserves referenced below.

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 2011 to 2014, the first years that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals. It is
possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has recorded reserves to address
its potential exposure based on the audit results to date.

Medicaid

Inpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates
per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under
fee schedules and cost reimbursement methodologies subject to various limitations or discounts. The
Hospital is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual
cost reports by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicaid program.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.

Other

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
health maintenance organizations. The basis for payment to the System under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, fee schedules, and
prospectively determined rates.

The accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements reflected on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets represents the estimated net amounts to be paid under reimbursement contracts with the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare), the New Hampshire Department of Welfare
(Medicaid) and any commercial payors with settlement provision. Settlements for the Hospital have
been finalized through 2015 for Medicare and Medicaid.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30,2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA)
Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospitallssue, Series 2017; interest of
5.0% per year and principal payable in annual installments.
Installments ranging from $2,010 to $5,965 beginning October 2032,
including unamortized original issue premium of $7,530 in 2018 $ 61,740 $ —

2.0% to 5.0% NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series
2013A; due in annual installments, including principal and interest
ranging from $1,543 to $3,555 through 2043, including unamortized
original issue premium of$2,945 in 2018 and $3,066 in 2017 41,805 43,091

1.71% fixed rate NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue,
Series 2013B; due in annual installments, including principal and
interest ranging from $1,860 to $3,977 through 2024 13,079 16,786

1.3% to 5.6% NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Concord Hospital Issue, Series
2011; due in annual installments, including principal and interest
ranging from $2,737 to $5,201 through 2026, including unamortized
original issue premium of $155 and $175 in 2017 22,325 26,289

138,949 86,166

Less unamortized bond issuance costs .(1»425) (843)
Less current portion . (.9,061) (8,822)

$128.463 $ 76.501

In December 2017, $62,004 (including an original issue premium of $7,794) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017, were issued to pay for the construction of a new medical
office building. In addition, the Series 2017 Bonds reimbursed the Hospital for capital expenditures
incurred in association with the construction of a parking garage and the construction of a medical office
building, as well as routine capital expenditures.

In February 2013, $48,631 (including an original issue premium of $3,631) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2013 A. were issued to assist in the funding ofa significant facility
improvement project and to advance refund the Series 2001 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. The
facility improvement project Included enhancements to the System's power plant, renovation of certain
nursing units, expansion of the parking capacity at the main campus and various other routine capital
expenditures and miscellaneous construction, renovation and improvements of the System's facilities.

In March 2011, $49,795 of NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2011, were, issued
to assist in the funding of a significant facility improvement project and pay off the Series 1996 Revenue
Bonds. The project included expansion and renovation of various Hospital departments, infrastructure
upgrades, and acquisition of capital equipment.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued)

Substantially all the property and equipment relating to the aforementioned construction and renovation
projects, as well as subsequent property and equipment additions thereto, and a mortgage lien on the
facility, are pledged as collateral for the Series 2011, 2013A and B and 2017 Revenue Bonds. In
addition, the gross receipts of the Hospital are pledged as collateral for the Series 2011, 2013A and.B
and 2017 Revenue Bonds. The most restrictive financial covenants require a 1.10 to 1.0 ratio of
aggregate income available for debt service to total annual debt service and a day's cash on hand ratio of
75 days. The Hospital was in compliance with its debt covenants at September 30, 2018 and 2017.

The obligations of the Hospital under the Series 2017, Series 2013A and B and Series 2011 Revenue
Bond Indentures are not guaranteed by any of the subsidiaries or affiliated entities.

Interest paid on long-term debt amounted to $5,530 (including capitalized interest of $167) and $4,010
for the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively.

The aggregate principal payments on long-term debt for the next five fiscal years ending September 30
and thereafter are as follows:

2019 ^
2020 "^'385
2021

2022 5,339
2023 5,485
Thereafter ^5,863

$128.319

7. Commitments and Contingencies

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

Prior to February I, 2011, the System was insured against malpractice loss contingencies under claims
made insurance policies. A claims-made policy provides specific coverage for claims made during the
policy period. During 2017, the System paid to transfer its obligation for claims and incidents made and
reported under the 2001-2011 policy period to a third party. Under the Loss Portfolip Transfer
agreement, the third party assumed obligation for claims and incidents made and reported, including any
closed incidents included on loss run reports that may ripen into a claim or suit and are subject to
reopening.
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7. Commitments and Contingencies ̂ Continued)

Effective February 1, 2011, the System insures its medical malpractice risks through a multiprovider
captive insurance company under a claims-made Insurance policy. Premiums paid are based upon
actuarially determined amounts to adequately fund for expected losses. At September 30, 2018, there
were no known malpractice claims outstanding for the System, which, in the opinion of management
will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage, nor were there any unasserted claims or
incidents which require loss accruals. The System has established reserves for unpaid claim amounts
for Hospital and Physician Professional Liability and General Liability reported claims and for
unreported claims for incidents that have been incurred but not reported. The amounts of the reserves
total $3,341 and $1,995 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively and are reflected in the
accomp^ying consolidated balance sheets within accrued pension arid other long-term liabilities. The
possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance
coverage may be asserted against the System.

The captive retains and funds up to actuarial expected loss amounts, and obtains reinsurance at various
attachment points for individual and aggregate claims in excess of funding in accordance with industry
practices. At September 30. 2018. the System's interest in the captive represents approximately 58% of
the captive. The System accounts for its investments in the captive under the equity method since control
of the captive is shared equally between the participating hospitals. The System has recorded its interest
in the captive's equity, totaling approximately $6,363 and $5,400 at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, in other noncurrent assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Changes in
the System's interest are included in nonoperating income on the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations

In accordance with ASU No. 2010-24, ''Health Care Entities" (Topic 954): Presentation of Insurance
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Hospital recorded a
liability of approximately $1,000 and $3,800, respectively, related to estimated professional liability
losses At September 30,2018 and 2017, the Hospital also recorded a receivable of $1,000 and $3,800,
respectively, related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential
losses. These amounts are included in accrued pension and other long-term liabilities and other assets,
respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The Hospital maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insurance plan. The plan offers,
•among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the Hospital against
excessive losses. The Hospital has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of $2,523 and $2,455 at
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, have been discounted at 3% (both years) and in
management's opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. A trustee held fund h^ been
established as a reserve under the plan. Assets held in trust totaled $2,937 and $4,120 at September 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included in assets whose use is limited or restricted in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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7. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Liiisation

The System is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be
resolved without material adverse effect on the System's financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants under the terms of the plan
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System
recognizes revenue for services provided to employees of the System during the year. The System is
insured above a stop-loss amount of $440 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and those
claims incuaed but not reported at September 30. 2018 and 2017, have been recorded as a liability of
$6,724 and $8,799, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
within accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Qperatine Leases

The System has various operating leases relative to its office and offsite locations. Future armual
minimum lease payments under noncancellable lease agreements as of September 30, 2018 are as
follows:

Year Ending September 30:
2019 ^
2020

2021 "*'362
2022

2023

Thereafter JA240

$36.546

Rent expense was $6,616 and $6,297 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

28



8.

9.

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at September 30:

2018

Health education and program services
Capital acquisitions
Indigent care
For periods after September 30 of each year

at September 30:

Health education and program services
Capital acquisitions
Indigent care
For periods after September 30 of each year

$15,481
1,646
239

214

2017

$15,970
1,485
243

102

Patient Service and Other Revenue

Net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

Gross patient service charges:
Inpatient services
Outpatient services
Physician services
Less charitable services

Less contractual allowances and discounts:
Medicare

Medicaid

Other

Total Hospital net patient service revenue (net of
contractual allowances and discounts)

Other entities

S17.580 $17-800

• the following purposes

2018 2017

$17,759 $17,595
803 803

1,810 1,811

275 193

$20.647 £20.402

2018 2017

538.592 $ 488,730
641,817 609,993
177,347 168,161
ri2.02n 18.547)

1,345,735 1,258,337

(487,941) (456,339)
(98,632) (110,816)
1267.214^ 1223.077)

f853.787> 1790.232)

491,948 468,105

699 242

$ 468.347
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9. Patient Service and Other Revenue (Continued)

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances, discounts and
provision for doubtful accounts recognized in 2018 and 2017 from these major payor sources, is as
follows for the Hospital. The provision for doubtful accounts for subsidiaries of the Hospital was not
significant in 2018 and 2017.

Hospital

2018

Private payors (includes
coinsurance and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

Gross

Patient

Service

Revenues

527,965
134,761
654,270
28.739

Contractual

Allowances

and

Discounts

$(236,785)
(112,341)
(487,941)
(16.7201

Provision

for

Doubtful

Accounts

$(17,106)

(4,887)
(7.3291

$l.M5J3i $(85.3.18.7)

Net Patient

Service

Revenues

Less Provision

for Doubtful

Accounts

$274,074
22,420
161,442
4.690

$462.626

2017

Private payors (includes
coinsurance and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

494,628

132,747

604,179

26.783

$(209,601)
(110,816)
(456,339)
(13.476)

$ (9,878)

(2,509)
(7.652)

$275,149
21,931
145,331

5.655

5:1-258.337 5;(79Q.232) $(20.039) $448.0^6

10. Functional Expenses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the years ended September 30:

Health care services

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization
Medicaid enhancement tax

Interest expense

2018 2017

$357,294 $325,471
76.788 80,050
27,574 . 24,378

20,975 20,311
4.873 2.918

$487.504 $453.128
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10. Functional Expenses (Continued)

Fundraising related expenses were $946 and $940 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

11. Charity Care arid Community Benefits (Unaudited)

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. The Hospital
provides traditional charity care, as well as other forms of community benefits. The estimated cost of
all such benefits provided is as follows for the years ended September 30:

Community health services
Health professions education
Subsidized health services

Research

Financial contributions

Community building activities
Community benefit operations
Charity care costs (see Note 1)

2018 2017

$ 2,131 $ 2,150

3,596 4,398

40,595 40,320

91 83

605 752

8 45

58 97

4,528 3.669

$51.612 $iL4Ji

In addition, the Hospital incurred estimated costs for services to Medicare and Medicaid patients in
excess of the payment from these prograrns of $85,512 ̂ d $88,830 in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

12. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents of southern
New Hampshire and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross receivables from
patients and third-party payors as of September 30 is as follows:

Patients

Medicare

Anthem Blue Cross

Cigna
Medicaid

Commercial

Workers' compensation

2018 2017

9% 10%

36 33

16 14

3 3

10 13

23 25

3 2

M%
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13. Volunteer Services (Unaudited)

Total volunteer service hours received by the Hospital,were approximately 13,300 in 2018 and 20,800
In 2017. The volunteers provide various nonspecialized services to the Hospital, none of which has been
recognized as revenue or expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

14. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In
determining fair value, the System uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches.
Based on these approaches, the System often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally unobservable inputs. The System utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based oh the observability of the inputs
used in the valuation techniques, the System is required to provide the following information according
to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information
used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and
disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal
agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based
on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and.projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30,2018 and 2017. In accordance
with ASU 2015-07, certain investments that are measured using the net value per share practical
expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.

32



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30:

2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income securities

Marketable equity and other securities
Inflation-protected securities and other
Trust funds administered by others

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 53,575 $ - $ -
60,917
104,670
21,166

11.051

■  S11-Q51

Total

$ 53,575
60,917
104,670

21,166

11.051

172.826

$424.205

2017

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income securities

Marketable equity and.other securities
Inflation-protected securities and other
Trust funds administered by others

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities

$ 18,811
30,982
99,069
22,187

S171.049

11.002

$11-002

18,811
30,982

99,069
22,187
11.002

182,051

173.052

$355.103

The System's Level 3 investments consist of funds administered by others. The fair value measurement
is based on significant unobservable inputs.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued!

A reconciliation of the fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as
follows for 2018 and 2017;

Trust Funds

Administered

bv Others

Balance at September 30,2016

Net realized and unrealized gains

Balance at September 30, 2017

Net realized and unrealized gains

Balance at September 30, 2018

$10,607

225

11,002

42

S 11.051

The table below sets forth additional disclosures for investment funds (other than mutual funds) valued
based on net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the investments by category:

September 30, 2018:
Fuhds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Collective trust funds
Collective trust funds

September 30, 2017:
Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds

Funds-of-funds
Funds-of-funds

Collective trust funds

Collective trust funds

Fair

Value

; 15,060
10,300
52,984
19,348
8,342
2,033
14,062
50,697

$13,948
10,634
58,988
18,219
7,232
362

5,906
57,763

Unfunded

Commit-

ments

$  -

4,412

$  -

3,411

Redemption
Frequency

Semi-monthly
Monthly
Quarterly
Annual

Semi-annual

Illiquid
Daily
Monthly

Semi-monthly
Monthly
Quarterly
Annual

Three year rolling
Illiquid
Daily
Monthly

Redemption
Notice

Period

5 days
15 days
45 - 65 days
60 - 90 days
60 days***
N/A

10 days
6-10 days

5 days
15 days
45 - 65 days
60 - 90 days*
60 days**
N/A

10 days
6-10 days

**

Certain funds are subject to a 2 year lock period before annual redemption can occur.
Subject to a 3 year rolling lock. This fund also has a special redemption right that allows the
Hospital to liquidate 10% of the investment on March 1 of each year, with 30 days' notice.
Limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Investment Strategies

Fixed Income Securities

The primary purpose of fixed income investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable
source of income, preserve capital, and reduce the volatility of the total portfolio and hedge against the
risk of deflation or protracted economic contraction.

Marketable Equity and Other Securities

The primary purpose of marketable equity investments is to.provide appreciation of principal and growth
of income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of
loss. The total marketable equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to
economic sector, industry, number of holdings and other characteristics including style and
capitalization. The System may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have
distinct investment styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it
is expected that the combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

The System invests in other securities that are considered alternative investments that consist of limited
partnership interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly
comprised of equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other
less liquid investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the
System values these investments at fair value, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata
interest in the net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each
investment from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly by the investment manager. Collective
trust funds are generally valued based on the proportionate share of total fund net assets.

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions and is estimated using the net asset value per
share of the fund. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation of certain alternative investments, the
estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from actual values, and differences could be
significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its alternative investments at the balance
sheet dates are reasonable.

The Hospital has committed to invest up to $13,747 between six investment managers, and had funded
$2,057 of that commitment as of September 30, 2018. As these investments are made, the Hospital
reallocates resources from its current investments resulting in an, asset allocation shift within the
investment pool.

Inflation-Protected Securities

The primary purpose of inflation-protected securities is to provide protection against the negative effects
of inflation.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018 and 2017
(In thousands)

14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts and pledges receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, estimated third-party payor settlements, and long-term debt and notes payable. The fair value
of all financial instruments other,than long-term debt and notes payable approximates their relative book
values as these financial instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that
approximate fair value. The fair value of the System's long-term debt and notes payable is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses, based on the System's current incremental borrowing rates for
similar types of borrowing arrangements. The carrying value and fair value of the System s long-term
debt and notes payable amounted to $138,949 and $155,435, respectively, at September 30, 2018, and
$86,166 and $102,286, respectively, at September 30,2017.
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Carole Domin, MBA RD LD CDE

EXPERTISE

Senior healthcare administrator with experience developing new, complex programs and managing multiple
programs.

Develop and Build New Programs and Services Selected by CEO to create a comprehensive weight management
program Including surgical and nonsurglcal options. Goal for Weight Institute of New Hampshire was to deliver a
full menu of weight loss options for overweight/obese across a continuum of patient commitment and price
points.

Manage Multiple Departments Across Complex Organizations Directed, organized and maintained budgets,
policies and procedures, quality improvement programs, workload management systems, work flow, standards of
care/protocols, staffing, patient satisfaction, community outreach, outcomes, and where applicable, national
accreditations. All programs and policies In support of organizational mission, values, and strategic vision.

Proven Leadership and Department Management Skills Build strong working relationships with physicians,
administrators, peers, support staff, patients, external organizations, and the general public. Good listener; able
to bring judgment, sensitivity and flexibility to situations. Collaborate and communicate effectively to create
viable programs which support and advance the organization's mission, values, and strategic vision. Manage
department teams, goals, and budgets.

EXPERIENCE

CONCORD HOSPITAL, Concord, NH 2016-present

Director, Specialty Services, 2018-present

Overall management for Cardiac & Pulmonary Rehabilitation Services, Diabetes & Nutrition Services, Occupational
Health Services, and Concord Endocrinology. This Includes but is not limited to clinical, operational, financial,
performance improvement, program development and patient care outcomes. In addition, collaboration with
medical and management personnel to assure development, promotion and maintenance of quality programs
and services.

Program Manager, Occupational Health Services, 2016-2018

Manage occupational health program which includes both pre-employment/health surveillance programs and
Injury management. Brought in during time of transition when majority of staff had turned over and processes/
work flow needed re-evaluatlon with goal of program stabilization and growth.

Evaluated every OH process for improvement/efficiency/accuracy and moved department from crisis
management to stabilization

More than doubled DOT random drug testing pool and expanded drug testing services to include onsite
drug testing

Have demonstrated consistent financial growth

Improved communication to employers/WC carriers by initiating same day communication of medicals
and developing relationships with key players

Developed and continue to support a cohesive clinical/clerical team
Work collaboratively with other departments on a regular basis Including patient billing, employee health,
lab, IT, rehab services, and rehab support services

Implemented new EMR (build/training/implementation)



LRGHEALTHCARE, Laconia, NH 2002-2016
Director, Nutritional Programming induding Directorship of Food & Nutrition Services, Clinical Nutrition,
Endocrine, Foot Clinic and Weight institute ofNH, 2013-2016

Managed a general and barlatric surgery practice. Created the Weight Institute of NH (WINH) from
scratch. Assembled, organized, directed and collaborated with multiple departments needed to create
comprehensive barlatric program. Departments Included Facilities, Finance, Nursing, Surgical Services,
Anesthesia, Marketing/PR, Education, Food & Nutrition, Compliance, and Behavioral Health. Established multi-
disciplinary work groups and project timeline; created workflows, critical pathways for patient care, policies and
procedures within WINH and for patient transition between departments.
•  Guided Food & Nutrition Services RD and managers to incorporate healthier food choices in cafeteria's.

Together we implemented the Stop Light labeling and education system in the cafeteria's.
• Worked with Food & Nutrition Services RD and managers to implement the Computrltion computerized diet

office system in both hospital Call Centers.
•  Recruited and guided WINH team of 4 through program creation and periods of rapid growth. This cohesive

team built a unified goal of program expansion and excellent customer service.
•  Negotiated a one-year exception to the Center of Excellence requirement with Harvard Pilgrim Healthcare so

surgeries could be done and reimbursed at LRGH prior to receiving national accreditation.
•  Achieved national accreditation for bariatric program - Metabolic and Bariatric Surgery Accreditation and

Quality Improvement Program (MBSAQIP) Low Acuity Center (previously known as Center of Excellence).
•  Organized and Implemented Optlfast program - medically supervised meal replacement weight loss

program. Created and continually updated workflows for staff and patient flow through all areas.
•  Implemented malnutrition screening and assessment program at LRGH and FRH which impacts medical

coding and brings in significant additional revenue to the hospitals.
•  Patient satisfaction very high as evidenced through WINH post program surveys and CGCAHPS surveys/scores

done by LRGH quality department. Weight loss outcomes exceeded national averages.
•  Expanded community nutrition programs to include a successful 12-week, comprehensive Biggest Loser!

weight loss program marketed and implemented In several local area businesses.

Director, CHnicai Nutrition, Endocrine, & Occupational Health Services, 2006-2013
Assumed directorship of Occupational Health Services (OHS) in addition to existing departments. Worked closely
with area businesses to provide healthcare and required medical surveillance in business community.
•  Turned OHS department around from losing $.60 on every dollar to a profitable status.
•  Managed total of 23 employees; enlisted support and guided 12 OHS employees In turning that program

around financially by increasing patient volume, productivity and revenue.
•  Developed same day sick program and minor injury treatment program at OHS Improving access to care and

therefore minimizing lost work time for employees of local businesses.
•  Continually assessed and adjusted staff workflow to improve patient throughput time in department.
•  Expanded DOT/non-DOT drug testing to include onsite testing throughout NH and parts of MA.
•  Expanded medical surveillance programs to include onsite DOT physicals throughout NH and parts of MA.
•  Initiated DOT compliance training for local business community.

Director of Clinical Nutrition & Endocrine Services, 2004-2006
Managed and directed Diabetes Self-Management Education Program, inpatient Clinical Nutrition Services,
Medical Nutrition Therapy outpatient program, and the Foot Clinic (9 locations). Assured Foot Clinics
profitability. Developed and maintained budgets, policies and procedures, quality improvement, workload
management, curriculum, patient satisfaction, and patient outcomes for above departments.
•  Expanded Foot Clinic sites to include the NH Veterans Home, Golden Crest assisted living facility and Forest

View Manor nursing home.

•  Oversaw creation and implementation of multldlscipllnary Parenteral Nutrition Service at LRGH and FRH.



Program Coordinator of Endocrine Services, 2002-2004
Recruited back to LRGH by previous boss to manage and direct Diabetes Self-Management Education Program at
LRGH, expand to FRH, and obtain national accreditation for both programs. Developed and maintained budget,
policies and procedures, standards of care, quality improvement, curriculum, and patient satisfaction, follow-up,
and outcomes. Managed Medical Nutrition Therapy outpatient program and Foot Clinic.
•  Established Diabetes Self-Management Education Program at FRH.

•  Collaborated with IT to create program for data analysis required for accreditation.
•  Obtained national accreditation for LRGH & FRH programs - American Diabetes Association Education

Recognition Program (ADAERP).
•  Developed & maintained Diabetes Care Management model of chronic disease management.

SPEARE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, Plymouth, NH 1993-2002
Ciinicai Dietitian, 1999-2002 (moved from management to part-time)
Created and implemented community nutrition programs; instructed inpatients and outpatients on therapeutic
diets. Participated In hospital community wellness programs.

•  Collaborated with Pediatrician and Psychologist to create eating disorder team and support group. Provided
nutrition component of treatment.

Director of Food & Nutrition Services, 1993-1999

Coordinated and implemented clinical nutrition programs and food service. Managed patient meals, cafeteria,
and catering services. Developed and maintained staffing, budget, policies/procedures, and food quality.

LAKES REGION GENERAL HOSPITAL, Laconia, NH 1990-1993
Ciinicai Dietitian

EDUCATION

M.B.A., Plymouth State College, Plymouth, NH, 1996
B.S., Dietetics, Summa Cum Laude, University of Connecticut, Storrs, CT, 1990.
A.S., Magna Cum Laude; Keene State College, Keene, NH, 1987.

HONORS AND A WARDS

Certificate of Merit, Academic Excellence: High academic standing in Plymouth State College MBA program.
Francis M. Tappan Award for Excellence: Highest GPA of School of Allied Health graduates University of
Connecticut.

Phi Kappa Phi National Honor Society for high academic standing.
Ann Lurate Lupo Memorial Scholarship Award for demonstrating notable competence In clinical nutrition.
Outstanding College Students of America for high academic standing.
Outstanding Freshman of the Year for high academic standing at Keene State College.

COMMITTEES/BOARDS

Leadership Lakes Region - Board of Directors June 2005-present
An organization dedicated to community improvement by developing, expanding, promoting and putting in a
place a network of effective volunteer leaders with a variety of skills and Interests.

Lakes Region Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) Partnership- member June 2009-2016
A multi-agency committee participating In a community grant to assist Lakes Region residents In adopting and
maintaining a healthy weight. HEAL collaboration continued after grant ended.

American Association of Diabetes Educators (AADE) 2012 Annual Meeting Planning Committee - committee
member, planned the national AADE meeting - term August 1, 2011- July 31, 2012



Lakes Region Partnership on Physical Activity and Nutrition: member August 2005 • December 2007
A multi-agency committee participating in a grant from the State of NH to improve diabetes prevention In the
Laconia Community.

Diabetes Advisory Group (NH Diabetes Program, DHHS) - member Nov 2003 - June 2006

Member, Diabetes Today Conference Planning Committee of NHADE: October 2003 • January 2008
Planned three statewide "Diabetes Today" conferences in 2004, 2005 & 2007



RESUME

ROBERT P. STEIGMEYER

Career History:

1/2014-Present

2012-12/2013

2010-2012

2005 - 2010

1993-2005

1989-1993

Capital Region Health Care and
Concord Hospital

Concord, NH

Geisinger Community Medical Center

Scranton, PA

Community Medical Center Healthcare System
Scranton, PA

Northwest Hospital & Medical Center
Seattle, WA

ECG Management Consultants

Seattle, WA

Ernst & Young

St. Louis, MO

President and CEO

CEO

President and CEO

Senior Vice President-

Operations & Finance

Principal/Shareholder

Senior Manager

Manager

Manager

Senior Consultant

Consultant

Educational Background:

1989

1985

Master of Health Administration

Master of Business Administration

St. Louis University

Bachelor of Arts

Wabash College



Cristina E. Taylor M.D.
Department of Pathology
Concord Hospital
250 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301
(603) 227-7000 x4620

Professional Experience

2002-present Staff De

1998-2000

1998-2000

1997-2000

Education

2001-2002

2000-2001

1996-2000

1992-1996

1990

1986-1990

partment ofPathology
Concord Hospital, CkDncord, NH

Staff (part time) Department of Pathology
Beverly Hospital, Beverly, MA

Staff (part time) Department of Pathology
Addison Gilbert Hospital, Gloucester, MA

On Call resident pathologist, Department of Pathology
St Elizabeth's Medical Center, Brighton, MA

Hartford Hospital. Hartford CT
Fellowship in Surgical Pathology

Hartford Hospital. Hartford CT
Fellowship in Hematopathology

New England Medical Center, Boston MA
Residency in Pathology

Pennsylvania State College of Medicine, Hershey PA
Doctorate of Medicine

University of Massachusetts, Amherst MA
Post Baccalaureate course in Organic Chemistry

Wellesley College, Wellesley MA
BA in Psychology, Cum Laude

Academic Appointments

1997-2000

1999

Awards

1999

1990

1986

Boards

6/94

Laboratory Instructor, General and Systemic Pathology (Oourse
Tufts University School of Medicine

Lecturer, Cardiovascular unit, Systernic Pathology Course
Tufts University School of Medicine

Fellow, Armed Forces Institute of Pathology, Washington DC
♦ selected as one of thirty residents, nationwide, for a one-month
fellowship in the soft tissue tumor department

BA, Cum Laude. Wellesley College. Wellesley MA

Deans List, Wellesley College, Wellesley MA

United States Medical License Examination, Part



8/95

11/97

7/02

9/03

Licensure

United States Medical License Examination, Part II
United States Medical License Examination, Part III
American Board of Pathology-Anatomic and Clinical Pathology
American Board of Pathoiogy-Hem'atopathology

Massachusetts Medical License, Number 158188
New Hampshire Medical License, Number 11844

Professional Organizations

1996-present
2002-present

Other Leadership

1998-present

1995-1996

1992

Prior Experience

1990-1992

1988,1989

Research

2002

2001

2000

College of American Pathologists
New Hampshire Society of Pathologists

Financial Coordinator, Talarion, Inc. USA
♦Internet service provider. Responsible for accounting and billing

Company Secretary, Mobius Limited. UK
♦ Software component company. Involved In marketing, sales, supplies, and
finances

Secretary, American Medical Women's Association,
Pennsylvania State College of Medicine

Research assistant, Brigham and Women's Hospital, Boston MA
♦ implemented new phase of a clinically based longitudinal study in pulmonary
disease. Supervised office, recruited subjects, managed data

Research assistant. Mass. Ins. of Behavioral Medicine, Springfield MA
♦organised and collected data for breast cancer prevention study

Marshall-Taylor 0, Cartun R, Mandich D, DiGuiseppe J. Immunohistochemical
Detection of Immunoglobulln Light Chain Expression Using Formalin-Fixed
Paraffin-Embedded Tissues and Modified Heat-Induced Epitope Retrieval
Technique. Appl. Immunohisochem. Mol. Morphol. 2002 Sep; 10{3)*258-62.

Hurford MT. Marshall-Taylor C, VickLSL, Zhou J, Silverman LM. Rezuke WN.
Altman A, Tsongaiis GJ. Mutation in Exon 5 of the ALAS-2 Gene Results in X-
linked Sideroblastic Ajiemia. Ciin. Chlm. Acta. 2992 July; 321(1-2):49-5.

Marshall-Taylor 0, R^uke WN, Tsongaiis G. The Hematologic Sequelae of
Parvovirus 819: Two Case Reports. J. Clin. Lig. Assay. 2001 Summer; 24(2):
1008-111.

Marshall-Taylor 0, Fanburg-Smith J. Rbrohistiocytic Lipoma: 12 Cases of a
Previously Undescribed Benign Fatty Lesion. Ann. Diaqn. Pathol. 2000 Dec;
4(6)354-60.

Marshall-Taylor C, Fanburg-Smith J. Hemosiderotic Fibrohistiocytic Lipomatous
Lesion: 10 Cases of a Previously Undescribed Fatty Lesion of the Foot/Ankle.
Mod. Pathol. 2000 Nov;13(11):1192-9.

Other Skill and Interests

Languages: Spanish
Interests: Travel, 19"^ century literature, and home improvement



Debra L. Willey

- OBJECT-IVEf - -

EDUCATION:

MEDICAL

TECHNOLOGIST:

To-apply-an-education in-Medical-Technology-and-Business-Administration-combined-with-gained'
clinical, administration, and marketing experience towards a challenging administrative director
role.

Bachelor of Science, University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, MT 1989
Professional Certification: American Society of Clinical Pathologists, MT180400
Master of Business Administration, Southern NH University, September 2008

RELATED EXPERIENCE

Concord Hospital, Concord, NH (9/89 - present)
Laboratory Administrative Director, - February 2008 - present
■  Lead a versatile, eleven member Laboratory Management Team
•  Prepare operations and capital budgets
■  Maintain regulatory compliance, CAP. AABB, JCAHO, FDA and CLIA
"  Lead Gallup Q12 and Press Ganey initiatives for organizational excellence
interim Administrative Director-June 2006-February 2008
Laboratory Business Operations Manager - January 2005 - 2008

Lead the business, safety, finance/compliance, transcription operations of .progressive
automated clinical laboratory, to include outreach operations and collection stations.
Evaluate, develop and mentor performance of multiple-supervisors and resource people

■  Key participant in contract renewals, to include State Contracts, Nursing Homes, Dialysis
•  Lead Saiety training for all employees; continually seek a safe work environment
Laboratory Sales and Marketing Specialist; May 2002 - Jan 2005
•  Continue in same capacity as previous role, without direct supervisory responsibilities to Client

Services Department.

■  Expanded involvement in contracting, billing problem resolution with clients.
Laboratory Client Services/ Marketing Supervisor: Nov 1997- May 2002

Designed and implemented a new Laboratory section. Client Services/Marketing Department
to service and maintain outreach laboratory business; develop and train staff on delivery of
Extraordinary Customer Service, and maximize customer satisfaction through strona
relationship building. ^
Recruit and grow new business. Current clientele of Physician Offices, Nursing Homes, NH
State Hospital, and Rehab facilities within a 25-mile radius of Concord Hospital Laboratory
Competent and comfortable with Physician and Physician Office Staff interaction.

■  Perform Physician and Physician Office Staff training and education in laboratory testing
requirements, and new laboratory products. Comfortable speaking and teaching in front of
large groups.

•  Supervisor to multiple direct reports, responsible for preparing the annual budget for the
department, perfonriance evaluations, coaching and development of laboratory personnel on
interpersonal and customer service skills.
Designed and developed all Marketing materials for the laboratory,* such as the Laboratory
Services Handbook, the Medicare Compliance Handbook, and Physician Pocket Reference
Guides. Responsible to ensure all outgoing communication from the laboratory features a
client-focused, positive tone.

Medical Technologist-Laboratory: September 1989 - Nov 1997
■  Rotated daily as a generalist technologist in all departments of the clinical laboratory.

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS:

PERSONAL:

■  1/2008-1/2010 President NH-VT CLMA — Clinical Laboratory Management Association NH-
VT Chapter .

■  American Society of Clinical Pathologists, member 1989 - present

Dedicated to family. Other interests Include indoor soccer, school, and reading



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from
this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Carole Domin

cadominfS).crhc.ore

("603^227-7000 x305l

Director of Rehab Specialty
Services, Concord Hospital

0 0

Robert Steigmeyer President and CEO, Concord
Hospital

0 0

Cristina Taylor, MD Medical Director of Laboratory

Services

0 0

Debra Willey, MBA,
MT(ASCP)

Administrative Director of

Laboratory Services

0 0



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissteaer

Um Morris

Director

STATE OF NEW HAM PSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD. NH 0330I-6503

663.Z7t-4«12 ]-«>0^3-3345 EiL 4612
Fai: 603-27I-4827 TDD Access: 1^.735-2964

DIVISION OF

Public Health Services
■ninwo'wwii pmnr^mmm KMf^eaabr«

May 12. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a renewal to an
existing agreement with Concord Hospital, Inc. (Vendor# 177653-B003), 250 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301, for the provision of laboratory, pathology and employee health services
for the Division of Public Health Services by increasing the price limitation by $555,000 from
$655,000 to $1,210,000, and extending the contract end date from June 30. 2017 to June 30,
2019, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The original agreement was
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 22, 2015, Item #22 and amended by
an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 24, 2016 (Item #17).
29% Federal funds. 32% General Funds, 39% Other Funds (Provider Fees)

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019.

05-095-940010-87500000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL: ACUTE
PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State
Fiscal
Year

Class/Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current
Modified
Budget

increase/
Decrease

Modifled
Amount

2015 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $129,000 $0 $129,0.00
2016 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $258,000 $0 $258,000
2017 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $258,000 $0 $258,000

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments
to Providers 94057300 $0 $260,000 $260,000

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments

to Providers 94057300 $0 $270,000 $270,000

Subtotal $645,000 $530,000 $1,175,000



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 4

05-95-90-90-902510-5084 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS - EBOLA

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/ Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

Decrease

Modified

Amount

2017 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
^ 90027030 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Subtotal $10,000 $0 $10,000

010-090-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. PUBLIC
HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

state

Fiscal

Year
Clft^^%)bject Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

Decrease ■

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90077410 $0 '  $5,000 .  $5,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog
Svc

90077410 $0 $5,000 $5,000

• SubTotal $0 $10,000 $10,000

05-95-90-903010-8280 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES, BiOMONITORING
GRANT

state

Fiscal

Year

Class/ Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

Decrease

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90082801 $0 $10,000 $10,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog
Svc

90082801 $0 $5,000 $5,000

Subtotal $0 $15,000 $15,000

Total $655,000 $555,000 $1,210,000



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing agreement to extend the
Completion Date, increase the Price Lirnitatlon. and expand the scope of services to include
additional employee health services and autopsy services. The agreement currently provides
health services for New Hampshire Hospital employees, which are necessary for public health
employees due to the possible exposures to various biological agents and/or chemicals and
health hazards encountered while completing their daily job duties.

The health services provided by the vendor include screenings and testing for chemical
exposure, infectious and communicable diseases and/or recognized illnesses such as
Hepatitis B, Mumps and drug resistant, Tuj^e/culosis. Services also include offering
immunizations to employees when necessary' In addition, the vendor shall provide all
pathology and laboratory services, which include laboratory services that meet' the
requirements of The Joint Commission, the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988
(CLIA), as amended, or any other applicable accrediting bodies.

This contract was competitively bid. The Request for Applications was posted to the
Department's website on October 2, 2014 through October 30, 2014. Two (2) proposals were
received. The applications were evaluated by staff with knowledge of the program
requirements. Concord Hospital was selected.

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting
a renewal for an additional two (2) years of service. The original agreement allowed for the
provision of these services for two (2) years, with the option to renew for up to four (4)
additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor
performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. This amendment shall
renew the contract for two (2) years, leaving two (2) additional years of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A of the contract, notwithstanding any other provision of the
Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department
shall riot be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until
an appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request,
Public Health employees and the people they come into contact with, would not have access
to screenings and testing for the possible exposure to the health hazards they routinely
encounter in their work environment.

Area Served; Statewide

Source of Funds: New Hampshire Hospital: 39% Other Funds (Medicare, Medicaid & third
party insurance), . 32% General Funds, and. 29% Federal Funds made available under the
Social Security Act, Section 1923, Payment for Inpatient Hospital Services Furnished by
Disproportionate Share Hospitals and for DPHS: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Catalog of Federal, Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.074, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) U90TP000535



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General Funds will
not be requested to support.this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lisa Morris

Director

Approved by:
rey A. Meyers

Commissioner

Th€ Departmtnl of Health and Human Services' Mitiion « to join communities and families in providing opportunities for
citizens lo achieve health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov / doit

Deois Goulet

Commissioner

May 22, 2017

Jeflrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with Concord Hospital, Inc.
(Vendor # 177653-B003) of Concord, NH, as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2015-0756.

The requested action authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to enter
into a contract amendment with Concord Hospital, Inc. to provide Laboratory and'
Pathology Services. These services will include autopsy services, routine and special
testing of bipod samples to detect disease and other medical problems that affect the
health of New'Hampshifel^iifo (NHH) patients and Employee Health Services.
Additionally, Concord Hospital will ensure that data is provided to New Hampshire
Hospital in a' computerized form and in sufficient detail for NHH to bill Medicare,
Medicaid or other payers.

The funding amount for this amendment is $555,000.00, increasing the current contract
from $655,000.00 to $1,210,000.00. The contract shall become effective upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30, 2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

DoIT #201,5-0756

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Latwratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2 to the Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services Contract

This second (2"^) Amendment to the Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this day of April. 2017, is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Departmenr) and Concord Hospital (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 250 Pleasant Street, Concord NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 22. 2015 (Item #22). and amended by an agreement (Amendment #1 to the Contract) approved
by the Governor and Executive Council on August 24. 2016 (Item #17). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services baised upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules, and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General
Provisions, the State may at its sole discretion, renew services for up to four additional years subject to
by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to renew services for two years, increase the price limitation,' and modify
the Scope of Work; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend the contract as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2019

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Item 18. Price Limitation, to read:

$1,210,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;

Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq.. Interim Director of Contracts and Procurement

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10. State Agency Telephone Numl>er. to read:

603-271-9246

5. Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #2.

6. Add Subparagraph 5.4.6 to Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, as follows:

5.4.6 Urine Creatinine. random $6.10

7. Add Exhibit B-2. Therapeutic Drug Monitoring Fee Schedule.

8. Add Exhibit B-3, Laboratory Fee Schedule.

9. Add Exhibit B-4. Occupational Health Services and Costs.

CAfDHHS/l 00213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Departmem of He^ an;^uman Services

Date Lisa Morris

Director

^I'l!zon
Date

Concord Hospital

NAME f
TITLE Prey>((facd'^ <L60

on ^'//'/7 before the
Acknowledgement:
State of /^uj/z^m^.^^ountv
undersigned officer, p^rson^ly appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or fvttirm'fff lira Pttfri

''fiiiiniitt*

CM)HHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CAnHHS/100213



Exhibit A-Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. The Contractor shall perform all laboratory and pathology services required by New
Hampshire Hospital (the Hospital) including autopsy services and provide employee
and occupational health services.

2. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
sefvicies they will provide to persons with limited English Proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services.

3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennia.

4. Laboratory and Pathology Services:

4.1. The Contractor shall provide all pathology and laboratory services, which
include laboratory services referenced, that meet the requirements of The
Joint Commission, the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988 (CLIA),
as amended, or any other applicable accrediting bodies.

4.2. The Contractor shall notify the Hospital in writing within five (5) working days
after receiving notification that:

4.2.1. Any of the above-mentioned services do not meet these requirements; or

4.2.2. The Contractor as a whole did not meet The Joint Commission or any
other applicable accrediting agencies requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide all consumable supplies necessary to conduct all
tests describe in this contract, at no additional cost to the Hospital.

4.3.1. Materials may be ordered on the supply order form or by phoning the
laboratory directly.

4.3.1.1. Materials will be delivered on the next courier run after the receipt of
the request.

4.4. The Contractor shall perform all pathology and laboratory sen/ices at the
Contractor's facility or a reference laboratory that meets the aforementioned
requirements. The Contractor shall notify the Hospital of any change in
reference laboratories.

4.5. The Contractor shall be responsible for the following frequency of lab tests,
performance, and pick- ups:

4.5.1. Routine tests are to be performed once daily, potentially seven (7) days
per week, except for chemistry profiles on Thanksgiving, Christmas, and
New Year's Day;

NH DHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services l..
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initiats:^^
Page 1 of 8 , , Date: <7//7^/7



Exhibit A-Amendment #2

AT,

4.5.2. Routine surgical pathology is to be completed daily, Monday through
Friday:

4.5.3. STAT specimens shall be picked up upon request, at the Hospital
specified locations, via courier as needed twenty-four (24) hours per day,
seven (7) days per week. The Hospital shall pay the Contractor $25.00
per visit for STAT pick-ups that fall outside the routine and additional pick
up times as specified below.

4.5.4. All STAT tests are to be performed within one (1) hour of receipt of
specimen.

4.5.5. Routine pick-ups for specimens up to three (3) times per day, Monday
through Friday, at 8:30 am, 11:30 am, and 4:00 pm and one (1) routine
pick-up on Saturdays;

4.5.5.1. No routine pick-ups on major holidays:

4.5.5.1.1. New Year's Day;

4.5.5.1.2. Memorial Day;

4.6.5.1.3. Independence Day;

4.5.5.1.4. ' Labor Day;

4.5.5.1.5. Thanksgiving Day; and

4.5.5.1.6. Christmas Day.

4.5.6. Additional pick-ups for specimens shall be made at 2:30 p.m., Monday
through Friday and 9:00 a.m., based on telephone calls notifying the
Contractor that the specimens are ready.

4.6. The Contractor shall determine through visual inspection prior to testing a
specimen whether its' handling is in compliance with protocol and valid test
results are possible. When a specimen is rejected:

4.6.1. The Contractor shall not conduct that test and must immediately notify the
appropriate Hospital patient care unit; and

4.6.2. Notify the Hospital's clinical laboratory liaison, each month, through the
established reporting process with the reason for rejection.

4.7. The Contractor shall perform routine assays on the day of specimen receipt.

4.7.1. The Contractor shall deliver results to the Hospital by 4:00 p.m. that same
day.

4.7.2. STAT testing is reported within one (1) hours of receipt at the contractor's
lab.

4.7.3. Printed copies of all laboratory results shall be fonwarded to the
appropriate clinician for review and to the Infection Control Practitioner
(ICP).

NH DHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services m.i
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials:
Page 2 of 8 Date:



Exhibit A-Amendment #2

4.7.4. Turn- around time shall be maintained in a manner suitable to the clinical
situation in which the tests are requested.

4.8. The Contractor shall provide autopsy services, seven (7) days per week,
including but not limited to;

4.8.1. A pathologist on call seven (7) days per week;

4.8.2. Delivery and pickup of the remains through a local licensed funeral home;

4.8.3. A provisional anatomic diagnosis within seventy-two (72) hours; and

4.8.4. A complete report and diagnosis provided to the Hospital within,sixty (60)
days.

4.9. The Contractor shall perform and report emergency or abnormal test results
or others requested by a physician:

4.9.1. In a timely fashion consistent with clinical appropriateness;

4.9.1.1. Critical results will be called with fifteen (15) minutes of verification.

4.9.2. To the patient care unit or directly to the practitioner by;

4.9.2.1. Calling and/or faxing, except on weekends; and

4.9.2.2. Followed by printed copies for the medical record. ,

4.10. The Contractor shall report laboratory results on a standard form approved by
the Hospital which includes:

4.10.1. The date and time a specimen was collected;

4.10.2. The date and time a specimen was received by the laboratory and
completed:

4.10.3. The technologist's initials; and

4.10.4. The pathologist's review, where appropriate.

4.11. The Contractor shall provide access and the ability to collect and print lab
results on-line at no additional cost to the Hospital.

4.11.1. Access to on-line laboratory results is through a secure Physician Portal.

4.11.2. The Contractor and the Hospital shall cooperate in the development of
enhancements to computerized reporting systems.

4.12. The Contractor shall notify the Infection Control Practitioner (ICP), within (1)
working day, of any laboratory findings that indicate a disease reportable to
the NH Division of Public Health Services.

4.13. The Contractor shall provide the antimicrobial susceptibility summary annually
to the Infection Control Practitioner (ICP).

4.14. The Contractor shall provide Phlebotomy services, including the
transportation of collected specimens at no additional cost to the Hospital on
a mutually agreed routine schedule to collect difficult draws.

NH DHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Empbyee Health Services //(
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials:
Page 3 of 8 Date:



Exhibit A-Amendment #2

4.15. The Contractor shall establish a standard of practice for obtaining and
processing specialized phlebotomy draws, such as, arterial blood gases, and
ammonia blood levels.

4.15.1. The Contractor will provide a Laboratory Services Handbook and on-line
access to the Hospital for standards of practice for specialized phlebotomy
draws.

4.16. The Contractor shall provide call back on STAT phlebotomy upon request and
have a charge as specified in Exhibit B. The transporting of these STAT
collected specimens to the Contractor's laboratory shall be at no additional
cost to the Hospital.

4.16.1. Phlebotomists employed by the Contractor will perform a venipuncture for
the process of obtaining blood, from veins only.

4.16.2. Patients requiring arterial blood gasses shall be transported to Concord
Hospital for the arterial venipuncture by qualified staff from the Respiratory
Therapy Department.

4.17. The Contractor shall perform therapeutic drug monitoring including active
metabolites on the substances based on the fee schedule established in
Exhibit B-2.

4.17.1. Turn-around times shall range from twenty-four (24) hours to up to seven
(7) days from the time samples are received at the testing laboratory to
the forwarding of results.

4.17.1.1. All antipsychotic and antidepressant drug monitoring shall be
through use of High Performance Liquid Chromatographic (HPLC)
techniques using both ultraviolet and electro-chemical detection.

4.17.2. Laboratory methodology shall include:

4.17.2.1. Detection;

4.17.2.2. Identification; and measurement of psychoactive metabolites of all
samples submitted.

4.17.3. Levels of parent drug and relevant active metabolites shall be included in
direct and follow-up reports.

4.18. The Contractor shall provide in-services training for nursing^ or other
personnel at no charge to the Hospital. This shall include, but is not limited
to:

4.18.1. Any changes related to laboratory services.

4.18.2. Education related to equipment supplied.

4.18.3. Any changes in collection practices.

4.18.4. Continuing education conferences of interest, which are held at Concord
Hospital for the physician community, nursing community, and/or the
infection prevention practitioner.

•

NH DHHS ^
Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services d //
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials: Mr
Page 4 of 8 Date: ■



Exhibit A-Amendment #2

r.\

4.19. The Contractor shall provide up to six (6) yearly continuing education
conferences, as agreed upon by the Hospital and the Contractor.

4.20. The Contractor shall supply appropriate requisition forms to the Hospital at no
additional cost.

4.21. The Contractor shall ensure that data provided to the Hospital is in a
computerized form and is in sufficient detail for the Hospital to bill Medicare,
Medicaid or other payors. The Contractor shall provide a compact disc with
the following information for billing purposes:

4.21.1. Patient name;

4.21.2. Date of service;

4.21.3. New Hampshire Hospital Medical Record Number;

4.21.4. New Hampshire Hospital location.

4.21.5. CPT-4 Code;

4.21.6. Diagnosis 1;

4.21.7. Diagnosis 2;

4.21.8. Description of service (test description and Concord Hospital order SIM
number);

4.21.9. Units of service performed;

4.21.10. Price and price extension; and

4.21.11. Ordering physician's name.

4.22. The Contractor shall meet with the Hospital once per quarter and as
necessary to discuss the quality and appropriateness of services, and
mutually resolve identified problems.

4.23. The Contractor shall provide the Hospital with information regarding the
objective criteria, such as, a quality control surveillance program, established
to review and monitor the services provided to the Hospital.

4.24. The Contractor shall serve as a reference laboratory for the Public Health
Laboratories as needed. The Contractor shall submit an invoice to the Public

Health Laboratories for services provided, based on the fee schedule
established in Exhibit B-3.

5. Employee Health Services

5.1. The Contractor shall provide employee health services, for New Hampshire
Hospital and the Division of Public Health Services charged as specified in
Exhibit B-4, which include but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Complying with employee health policies in accordance with Occupational
Safely and Health Administration (OSHA), blood borne pathogen
standards, and U.S. Public Health Services guidelines.

NH DHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initiais:/^
Page 5 of 8 Date:
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Exhibit A-Amendment #2

5.1.2. Screening employees for communicable and infectious diseases, as
requested by the New Hampshire Hospital and/or the Division of Public
Health Services, including but not limited to;

5.1.2.1. Hepatitis B,

5.1.2.2. Measles,

5.1.2.3. Mumps.

5.1.2.4. Pertussis,

5.1.2.5. Rabies,

5.1.2.6. Rubella,

5.1.2.7. Tuberculosis, and

5.1.2.8. Varicella.

5.1.3. Screening employees for occupational exposure to chemicals, Including
but not limited to heavy metals and lead.

5.1.4. Referring employees showing any signs of potential added risk in the
performance of their job duties to their Personal Care Physician.

5.1.5. Conducting pre-placement^ and/or physical screening, as appropriate,
including but not limited to;

5.1.5.1. Medical and occupational history review,

5.1.5.2. Respirator medical clearance exams, and

5.1.5.3. Visual color discrimination exams.

5.1.6. Conducting physical capacity exams, as appropriate, that shall not
duplicate exams performed under the workers' compensation program for;

5.1.6.1. Newly transferred employees;

5.1.6.2. New employees;

5.1.6.3. Those returning after injury or major illness; and

5.1.6.4. Employees with performance problems, as requested by New
Hampshire Hospital and/or the Division of Public Health Services.

5.1.7. Providing immunization or saeening in accordance with Occupational
Safety Health Administration (OSHA) blood borne pathogen standard and
with the CDC recommendations regarding the Immunization of Health
Care Workers.

5.1.8. Providing immunizations against diseases, per request of New Hampshire
Hospital and/or the Division of Public Health Services, including but not
limited to the ones listed in 4.1.2.

NH DHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

' ■ • Initial^
Page 6 of 8 Date: lHoif
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Exhibit A-Amendment #2

5.1.9. Following-up exposures to blood borne pathogens, infectious and
communicable diseases, and other health exposures, as requested by the
New Hampshire Hqspital and/or Division of Public Health Services.

5.1.10. Providing chest radiographic services for employees who present with a
positive Tuberculin Skin Test (TST).

5.1.11. Forwarding all of the aforementioned documentation for New Hampshire
Hospital employees to the New Hampshire Hospital's Human Resources
Department at 36 Clinton Street, Concord NH 03301.

5.1.12. Fonwarding all of the aforementioned documentation for Division of Public
Health Services employees to the Administrator II at the Department of
Health and Human Services, Human Resources. 129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301.

5.1.13. Providing access and the ability to collect and print lab results.

5.1.14. Attending quarterly meetings with New Hampshire Hospital Infection
Prevention.

5.1.15. Maintaining current health records on all referrals from the New
Hampshire Hospital and the Division of Public Health Services. Records
shall contain at miriimum:

5.1.15.1. Verification of all services requested; and

5.1.15.2. Result/findings of the above request (including any declination
forms).

6. Staffing

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure that employees who will be present on the
Hospital campus;

6.1.1. Have documentation of a criminal background check, which demonstrates
not criminal offences;

6.1.2. Are available to complete a thirty (30) minute NHH orientation regarding
patient confidentiality and boundaries; and

6.1.3. Have certification, trainirig regarding blood borne pathogens (in
accordance to the OSHA blood borne pathogen standard), and
competency to perform the duties in Sections 3 and 4 of the Scope of
Services.

7. Reporting

7.1. The Contractor shall submit a quarterly Specimen Collection Quality
Assurance Report. Copies of the report shall be sent via email to the Director
of Standards and Quality Management, the Infection Prevention Practitioner,
and the Hospital Clinical Laboratory Liaison at New Hampshire Hospital, and
shall include:

7.1.1. The number of each test and profile performed;

NH DHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services j
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor initials:
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Exhibit A-Amendment #2

^r.

7.1.2. A list, by patient, of the tests or profiles completed;

7.1.3. A list, by practitioner, of tests and profiles ordered;

7.1.4. A list, by dates and times, of the additional courier call-backs, and the
associated costs;

7.1.5. A list, by patient, of all rejected specimens; and

7.1.6. Other reports upon request, which includes but is not limited to a summary
of reported issues.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of ten (10) copies of the Specimen
Collection Manual (One to each of the six (6) patient care units and others as
designated), with updates as necessary at no additional cost to New
Hampshire Hospital.

7.2.1. One copy shall be sent via e-mail to the New Hampshire Hospital Infection
Prevention Department.

7.2.2. Any infection prevention communication shall be sent via email to the
Infection Prevention Department.

7.3. The Contractor shall provide a quarterly statistical summary of all Employee
and Occupational Health Services to the NHH Human Resource Coordinator
II and to Administrator II at DHHS, Human Resources, which shall include but
not be limited to;

7.3.1. Name of Employee;

7.3.2. Date of service;

7.3.3. Type of test which includes but is not limited to:

7.3.3.1. Pre-hire;

7.3.3.2. Physical capacity;

7.3.3.3. Worker's compensation;

7.3.3.4. Return to work;

7.3.4. Immunization type; and

7.3.5. Cost.

NH DHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Pathoiogy Services and Empioyee Health Services
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Iriitial8: -j/f /y
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and Exhibit B-2

Employee Health Services Therapeutic Drug Monitoring Fee Schedule

Generic Name Trade Name CPT code Fees TAT*

(business

davsl

Antldeoressant Dniae

bupropion Wellbutrin 80338 $ 40.40 1-5 days

citalopram Celexa 80332 $157.00 3-10 days

clomipramine Anafranil 80335 $ 42.00 5-8 days

duloxetine Cymbalta 80332 $197.00 7-10 days

escitalopram Lexapro 80332 $ 164.00 3-10 days

fluoxetine Prozac 80332 $ 20.00 1-5 days

fluvoxamine Luvox 80332 $121.00 3-10 days

paroxetine Paxll 80332 $ 111.10 3-10 days

sertraline Zoloft 80332 $ 61.00 1-5 days

trazodone Desyrel 80332 $ 51.00 5-8 days

venlafaxine Effexor 80338 $ 56.70 5-8 days

Mood Stabilizers

carbamazepine Tegretol 80156 $ 12.50 1-4 days

gabapentin Neurontin 80171 $ 20.00 1-2 days

lamotrigine Lamlctal 80175 $  11.80 1-5 days

oxcarbazepine Trileptal 80183 $ 24.60 1-2 days

tiagabine Gabitril 80199 $ 75.90 3-5 days

topiramate Topamax 80201 $ 39.50 1 -5 days

Concord Hospital

lS-DHHS-DCBCS-NHH-11

Exhibit B-2
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and Exhibit B-2

Employee Health Services Therapeutic Drug Monitoring Fee Schedule

Generic Name Trade Name CPT code Fees TAT*

(business

davs)
Antlosvchotic Oruas

aripiprazole Ability 80342 $  56.70 7-10 days

chlorpromazine Thorazine 80342 $  60.70 1-5 days

clozapine Clozarll 80159 $  13.00 1-2 days

fluphenazine Prolixin 80342 $  61.30 1-5 days

haloperldol Haldol 80173 $  27.70 1-4 days

olanzapine Zyprexa 80342 $  70.80 1 -5 days

paliperidone (NEW PER

USAGE)

80342 $ 25.70 1-5 days

perphenazine Trilafon 80342 $  61.30 1-3 days

quetiapine Seroquel 80342 $ 124.30 1 -5 days

rlsperidone Risperdal 80342 $100.00 3-10 days

thiothlxene V  Navane 80342 $  32.50 1-4 days

ziprasidone Geodon 80342 $  56.70 3-10 days

* TAT = Turn around time

Concord Hospital
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services

Exhibit B-3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

2017 Soft Code 2017 Test Description Charge Code CPTcode SFY18-SFY20Fee

9220A 6. Burgdorferl, IgG WB 9220 86617 S 71.60

9220B B. Burgdorferl, IgM WB .9220 86617 S 71.60

ABO ABO Group 3800 86900 $ 4.10

ABSG Antibody Screen "  3010 86850 $ 11.80

ACETA Acetaminophen 8302 82003 $ 7.70

ACETN Acetone 8311 82009 $ 5.30

ADO LA Aldolase, Serum 9207 82085 s 14.20

AFSa AFB Culture 4212 87116 $ 12.60

AFBST , AFB Stain 4213 87206 $ 6.30

ALB Albumin 7380 82040 S 5.80

ALCl Ethanol,Serum 8310 82055 $ 12.60

ALDS Aldosterone, Serum 9024 82088 $ 59.50

ALP Alk Phos 7390 84075 s 6.10

ALT ALT-SGPT 7115 84460 $ 6.20

AMMO Ammonia 7385 82140 $ 17.00

AMTRP Amltriptyllne and Nortriptyline 1147 .  80335 $ 26.20

AMY Amylase 7200 82150 $ 7.60

ANA ANA Screen (Reflex) 1230 86038 $ 14.10

ANAER Anaerobe and Aerobe Culture 4950 87070 $ 10.10

ANAT ANA Tlter 1231 86039 $ 15.30

Apra C. trachomatis (TMA) 4385 87491 $ 30.00

APTNG N. gonorrhoeae (TMA) 4385 87591 $ 30.00

APTT PTT 5155 85730 $ 7.00

ASLl SURG PATH, GROSS ONLY 2300 88300 $ ^  16.40

ASL2 LEVEL 2 SURG PATH 2302 88302 $ 36.10

ASL3 LEVEL 3 SURG PATH 2304 88304 $ 43.30

ASL4 LEVEL 4 SURG PATH 2305 88305 $ 56.10

ASL5 LEVEL 5 SURG PATH 2307 88307 s 112.40

ASL6 LEVEL 6 SURG PATH 2309 88309 $ 154.90

ASO ASO Antibody (Reflex) 1235 86063 $ 6.80

AST AST-SGOT 7410 84450 $ 6.10

ATPO Thyroid Peroxidase Ab 7235 86376 s 22.00

812 Vitamin B12 8720 82607 $ 14.00

BLOOD Culture, Blood 1260 87040 $ 12.10

BMP Basic Metabolic Panel 7417 80048 $ 9.90

BNP NT-proBNP 7267 83880 $ 39.70

BNZOS Benzodiazeplnes, Serum 1257 80346 $ 34.40

BUN BUN 7340 84520 $ 4.60

C$AF1 . AFB Concentrate 4284 87015 $ 7.80

C$AI1 Anaerobe isolation 4178 87075 $ 11.10

C$AN1 Anaerobe ID 4218 87076 ,$ 9.50

C$EZ1 Enzyme, Beta Lactamase 1537 87185 $ 1.60

CSFCl Feces Aeromonas ' 4276 87046 $ 11.00

C$FC2 Feces E Coli 0157 4278 87046 $ 11.00

C$FC3 Feces Campylobacter 4282 87046 $ 11.00

C$FC4 Feces SalmShig 4280 87045 $ 11.00

CSFCS Feces Shiga Toxin 1 4327 87899 $ 14.M

C$FC6 Feces Shiga Toxin 2 4328 87899 $ 14.00

CSFGl Fungus ID 4129 87107 $ 12.10

C$GR1 Gradient 1 1536 87181 $ 1.60

C$ID1 Microbe ID 1 4126 87077 $ 9.50

Concord Hospital
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services
Exhibit B-3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

2017 Soft Code 2017 Test Description Charge Code CPTcode SFY18-SFY20Fee
C$KB1 KIrbyBauer 1 412S 87184 $ 8.10
C$MB1 Min Cidal Cone 1 4177 87187 S 12.10
CSMCl MinlnhibConc 1 4176 87186 S 10.10
C$0P1 O&P Concentrate 4566 87177 $ 10.40
CS0P2 O&PTrlchrome ' 4567 87209 $ 21.00
C$0P3 O&P Cryptosporidium 4568 87206 S 6.30
CSYTl Yeast ID 1 1535 87106 $ 12.10
C125 CA 125, Serum 9156 86304 $ 24.30
CA Calcium 7320 82310 S 6.00
CALBK Foilow-Up Actions - (Courier Call Back Fee] 9795 NOCPT $ 25.00
GARB Carbamazepine 8303 80156 S 12.50
CBCWD CBC with Differential 5070 85025 S 7.10
CBCWO CBC without DIff 5080 85027 $ 5.70
C6LK CELL BLOCK 2305 88305 $  ■ 56.10
CDIF2 C. difficile Toxin, PCR 4317 87493 s 13.40

CEA CEA 8204 82378 $ 19.40
CHLRP- Chlorpromazine 1321 80342 $ 60.70
CHOL Cholesterol 7360 82465 s 5.10
CK CK,Total 7100 82550 $ 7.60
CKISO CK,w/isoenzyme 7101 82550 $ 7.60
CKMB CK-MB 7998 82553 $ 9.10
CL Chloride 7003 82435 $ 5.40
CLEAD Lead, Blood (Capillary) 9170 83655 s 14.20
CLMIP Clomipramlne and Metabolite, Serum 1157 80335 $ 42.00
CLNA2 Clonazepam 1262 80346 $ 27.00
CLOZ Clozapine, Serum 9228 80159 $ 13.00
CMP Comprehensive Metabolic Panel 7418 80053 $ 12.40
C02 C02 7004 82374 s 5.00
COPPS ■ Copper,Serum 9687 82525 s 14.50
CORA Cortisol AM 8447 82533 $ 19.10
CORP Cortlsol PM \ 8448 82533 s 19.10
CORR Cortisol, Random 8449 82533 $ 19.10
CRCLR Creatlnine Clearance 7600 82575 $ 2.60
CRE Creatinine, Enzymatic 7402 82565 $ 6.00
CREUX Ux Creatinine,Random 7406 82570 s 6.10
CRP CRP 1345 86140 s 6.10
CSPOR Cryptosporidium 1531 87272 $ 13.40

oaiL Bilirubin, Direct 7472 82248 s 5.90
DECAL DECALCIFICATiON 2311 88311 s 5.10
DIG Digoxin 8530 80162 s 15.50

DILAN Dllantin 8307 80185 $ 15.50

DSIPR Desipramine, Serum 9249 80160 s 25.10
EAR Culture, Ear 4359 87070 $ 10.10
EBEAG EBV EA (D) Ab IgG 9375 86663 $ 15.30
ER/PR ER/PR Immunohistochemistry, Each Antibody 2965 88360 $ 49.20

EST2 Estradiol 8572 82670 $ 32.70
EXSTD Cytopath, Smears, Extended Study ' 2931 88162 $ 32.00
EYE Culture, Eye 4369 87070 $ 10.10

FCHOL Fluid Cholesterol 7886 84999 s 3.80
FCORT Free Cortisol 9655 82530 s 19.50
FE Iron 8551 83540 $ 7.60

Concord Hospital
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services

Exhibit B-3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

2017 Soft Code 2017 Test Description Charge Code CPT code SFY18-SFY20Fee

FECW Stain, Fecal W8C 4S60 87205 $ 5.00

FER Ferritin 8495 82728 S 15.90

FLIPA Fluid Lipase 7888 83690 $ 9.70

FLPHN Fluphenazine 9830 80342 $ 61.30

FIXET Fluoxetine and Metabolite 1146 80332 S 20.00

FOL .  Folate 8740 82746 $ 17.20

FSH FSH 8811 83001 S 21.70

FT3 Free 13 8513 84481 $ 11.80

FT4 Free 14 8504 84439 s 10.60

FTABS FTA-ABS 9501 86780 $ 15.50

FTBIL Fluid Total Bitlrubln 7889 82247 S 3.80

FTEST Free Testosterone 9347 84403 $ 17.30

FTRIG Fluid Trlglycerides 7887 84478 s 4.30

FUNGS Culture, Fungus-Skin 4272 87101 $ 9.00

FUNGX Culture, Fungus - Not Skin or Blood 4377 87102 $ 9.80

GABAP Gabapentin 1150 80171 $ ' 20.00

GC_CX Culture, GC 4390 87081 $ 6.70

GENIT Culture, Genital 4395 , 87070 $ 10.10

GGTP GGTP 7130 82977 s 7.40

GLU Glucose 7020 82947 $ 4.50

GRAM Stain, Gram 4420 87205 $ 5.00

HAIC Hemoglobin AlC 8312 83036 $ 11.30

HAIGM Hep A IgM Antibody 8573 86709 $ 13.20

HALDO Haloperidol (haldol) 9377 80173 $ 27.70

HAPTG Haptoglobin 9414 83010 $ 14.70

HAVTL Hep A Antibody Total 8574 86708 s 14.50

HBABS Hep B Surface Antibody (Qua!) 8559 86706 $ 12.60

HBAGC Hep B sAg,Confirmatory 8577 87341 $ 12.10

HBAGS Hep B Surface Antigen 8552 87340 $ 12.10

HBCAB Hep B Core Ab,Total 8576 86704 $ 14.10

HBCIM Hep B Core IgM Ab 8575 86705 $ 13.80

HCG Beta HCG 8300 84702 $ 15.40

HCRNA HCVRNA Quant RT-PCR 9372 87522 $ 98.70

Ha Ha 5153 85014 s 2.80

HCVAB Hep C Antibody 8578 86803 $ 15.60

HDL HDL Cholesterol 7365 83718 s 8.40

HFP Hepatic Function Panel 7470 80076 $ 9.60

HGB HGB 5154 85018 $ 2.80

HIV4 HIV Ag/Ab Combo 1/2 Screen 7217 87389 $ 18.40

HIVRQ HIV-1 RNA, Quantitative, Real-Time PCR 9851 ■ 87536 $ 98.70

HPABC Acute Hepatitis Panel 8579 80074 $ 54.50

HPBEA Hepatitis Be Virus Ab 9737 86707 $ 13.50

HP8EG Hepatitis Be Virus Ag 9738 87350 $ 13.50

HSCRP High Sensitivity CRP 7392 86141 $ 20.30

IMIPR Imipramine and Oesipramine 1243 80335 $ 23.10

INSLN lnsulin,Total " 9448 83525 $ 25.50

ISEDR Sed Rate 5079 85652 s 3.20

lUBIL Bilirubin 6006 81003 $ 2.00

lUBLO Occult Blood 6007 81003- $ 2.00

lUDIP Urinalysis, Dipstick Only 6016 81003 s 2.30

lUGLU Glucose 6004 81003 $ 2.00

Concord Hospital
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services
Exhibit B-3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

2017 Soft Code 2017 Test Description Charge Code CPT code SFY18-SFY20Fee
lUKET .  Ketones, Urine 6005 81003 S 2.00

lUMAC Urine Macroscopic 6016 81003 S 2.30

iUMIC Urine Microscopic 6010 81015 $ 3.60
KK Potassium 7002 84132 $  ' 4.70

LOH LOH 7400 83615 $ 7.10
LH LH 8810 83002 $ 21.60
LI Lithium 8206 80178 s 5.70

LIPAiS Upase 7343 83690 s 8.10
LIPID Upid Panel 7377 80061 s 15.70

LMOTG Lamotrigine 9814 80175 s 11.80

LYTES Electrolytes 7010 80051 $ 7.20

MALBR Microalbumin, Ux Random 7473 82043 $ 6.30
MDTOX Medical Urine Toxicology Screen 8604 80306 $ 20.40

MERCB Mercury.Blood 9150 83825 s 30.90

MG Magnesium 7120 83735 s 6.90

MRSA Staphylococcus Aureus Culture 4462 87081 s 6.70

MSPOT Mononucleosis Screen 1449 86308 $ 6.10

NA Sodium 7001 84295 $ 5.40

NORXP Norovirus PCR 4313 89978x2 $ 137.50

NRTRP Nortriptyline 1173 80335 s 24.00

OCCBD Occult Blood, Stool 6015 82272 $ 3.80

CKCBS Occult Blood, Stool 6032 82270 $ 3.80

pLNZA Olanzapine(Zyprexa) 9264 80342 s 70.80

OSMOL Osmolaiity,Serum 7225 83930 $ 7.70

PAXIL Paroxetine Ouantitation 1194 80332 $ 111.10

PERP Perphenazine 1278 80342 $ 61.30

PHENB Phenobarbital, Serum 9373 80184 s 13.40

PHLBC Phlebotomy Collection 8992 36415 $ 4.00

PHLCB Phlebotomy Call Back Fee 9718 NOCPT s 75.00

PHOS Phosphorus 7330 84100 $ 5.50

PLTLT Platelet Count 5073 85049 $ 2.00

PREAL Prealbumin 8775 84134 s 17.00

PREG HCG Serum, Qualitative 5208 84703 s 8.80

PRGST Progesterone 8571 84144 $ 24.40

PRLC Proiactin 8212 84146 s 19.80

PRSF Protein S, Functional 9262 85306 s 24.70

PRTCF Protein C, Functional 9263 85303 $ 91.80

PSA-P PSA, Prognostic 8526 84153 $ 17.00

PSA-S PSA, Screening 7401 G0103 $ 17.00

PTINR PT/INR 5159 85610 s 4.60

RENAL Renal Function Panel 7419 80069 s 10.10

RETP Reticulocyte Panel 5072 85046 s 4.70

RF Rheumatoid Factor 1490 86430 $ 6.60

RH Rh Typing 3070 86901 $ 3.50

RISPR Risperidone and Metabolite, Serum/Plasma 9406 80342 $ 100.00

RPR-T Rapid Plasma Reagin (RPR) Tlter 1369 86593 $ S.IO

RU8EL Rubella Immune Status 1510 86762 $ 16.30

RUBEO Rubeola Immune Status 1512 86765 $ 15.10

SAL Salicylate 8301 80196 s 8.20

SCLRO Scleroderma(Scl-70) Ab 9736 86235 s 21.00

SEROQ Quetiapine($eroquel) 1125 80342 $ 124.00

Concord Hospital
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services

Exhibit 8-3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

2017 Soft Code 2017 Test Description Charge Code CPT code SFY18-SFY20Fee

SGIAR Glardia 1531 . 87269 S 13.40

SMAIG Smooth Muscle IgG Antibody 9245 83S16 $ 13.40

SPUTM Culture, Sputum 4530 87070 $ 10.10

SRTRL Sertrallne 1250 80332 $ 61.00

STRAG Strep Group A Antigen 4249 87880 $ 10.20

STRPA Strep Group A Culture 4605 87081 s 6.70

SYPH Syphilis Antibody Screen with Reflex 7891 86780 s 5.00

T3 Total T3 8514 84480 $ 14.50

T4 Thyroxlne,Total(T4) 8510 84436 s 6.70

TBIL Total Bilirubin 7210 82247 s 5.90

TEST Testosterone ^ 8570 84403 s 30.20

THEO Theophylline 8308 80198 $ 16.50

THITH Thiothixene 1305 80342 $ 32.50

THROT Culture, Throat 4600 87070 $ 10.10

TIAGA TIagablne (Gabitrll) 1271 80199 $ 75.90

TP Total Protein 7370 84155 $ 4.20

TPMAX Toplramate (Topamax) 1179 80201 $ 39.50

TRAZO Trazodone 1272 80332 $ 51.00

TRIG Triglycerides 7125 84478 s 6.70

TRILE Oxcarbazeplne Metabolite 9559 80299 s 24.60

TRNSF Transferrin, Serum 9724 84466 $ 14.90

TROP Troponin 1 8622 84484 $ 11.50

TSH TSH 8503 84443 $ 14.40

TSTIM Thyroid Stimulating Imm. 9203 84445 $ 59.40

TU T3 Uptake 8501 84479 s 6.70

UAB Urinalysis, Reflex 6001 81001 s 3.70

UALC Alcohol, Urine 8327 80101 s 14.80

UAMYC Timed Ux Amylase 7560 82150 s 7.60

UAMYR Ux Amylase,Random 7550 82150 $ 7.60

UCAC 24hr Ux Calcium 7700 82340 s 7.10

UCLC 24hrUx Chloride 7540 82436 s 5.90

UCRC2 24hr Ux Creatlnlne 7570 82570 $ 8.50

UCREX Creatlnlne, Ux Ran 7474 82570 $ 3.20

UHCG HCG Urine, Qualitative 5203 81025 $ 7.40

UIBC IBC, Unconjugated 8548 83550 $ 10.20

UKC 24hr UX Potassium 7529 84133 $ 5.00

UMALC Ux MIcroalbumin, Timed 7705 82043 s 6.30

UNAC 24hr Ux Sodium 7528 84300 $ 5.70

UOS24 Osmolallty,Ux,24 Hr 7785 83935 s 8.00

URIC Uric Acid 7350 84550 s 5.30

URINE Urine Culture 4900 87086 s 7.50

UTPC 24hr Ux Protein 7670 84156 $ 4.20

UUNC 24hr Ux Urea Nitrogen 7541 84540 s 5.60

UVOL Total \/olume(mL) 8995 81050 s 3.50

UXCAR Ux Calcium,Random 7775 82340 $ 7.10

UXCLR UxChloride,Random 7540 . 82436 $ 4.90

UXKR Ux Potassium,Random 7529 84133 $ 4.90

UXNAR Ux Sodium,Random 7528 84300 $ 5.70

UXOSM Ux,Osmolality,Random 7630 83935 $ 8.00

UXTPR Ux Protein,Random 7725 84156 $ 4.20

UXUNR Ux Urea Nitrogen,Random 7765 84540 $ 5.60

Concord Hospital

15-OHHS-OCBCS-NHH-ll

Exhibit B-3

5 of 6

Contractor Initials

Date aIiI



Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services

Exhibit B-3

Laboratory Fee Schedule

2017 Soft Code 2017 Test Description Charge Code CPT code SFY18-SFY20Fee

VALP Valproic Acid 8309 80164 $ 11.60

VENLF Venlafaxine and Metabolite 9012 80338 $ 56.70

VITD Vitamin D, 2S-0H, total 7232 82306 $ 15.30

VLEAD Lead, Blood (Venous) 9171 83655 $ 14.20

VRE ' Culture, VRE 4917 87081 $ 6.70

VZVIG Varicella IgG 1540 86787 s 15.10

wBca WBC Only 5007 85048 $ 2.30

WOUND Culture, Wound 4935 87070 $ 10.10

YSTS Yeast Culture-Skin,Hair,Nail 4239 87101 $ 9.00

YSTX Yeast Culture-Not Skin or Blood 4238 87102 $ 9.80

ZINC Zinc, Serum 9408 84630 s 35.70

ZYBAN Bupropion 1318 80338 $ 40.40

Concord Hospital
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services

Exhibit B-4

Occupational Health Services and Costs

COST

SFY SFY

Services 201B-2017 201S-2019

OH-INJECnON $  14.50 5  14.50

OH-FiT TESTING (IN HOUSE) $  43.00 S  43.00

OH-CHEST CONTRAa PA&LAT/INTERP $  166.30 5  166.30

OH-PRE-PLACEMENT PCE $  S2.00 5  55.00

S4(PT)-P05T HIRE ASSESSMENT S  52.00 S  55.00

OH-TUBERCUUN PROTEIN S  3.50 5  7.50

OH-PRE-PLACEMENT SCREEN RN S  42.00 5  45.00

OH-RABIES VACCINE 5  337.00 5  337.00

OH-RN DOCUMENT REVIEW $  10.00 S  10.00

OH-HEPATITISB VACCINE $  50.00 5  56.00

OH-MEASLES-MUMPS-RUBELLA VACCINE 5  66.00 5  69.00

OH-VARICELLA VACCINE(CHICKEN POX) S  94.50 5  123.00

OH DIPHT-PERTUS-TETNUS(AOACEL) $  41.50 S  41.50

OH-VENtPUNaURE S  15.50 5  15.50

OH-TB TEST READ ONLY SO.OO SO.OO

OH-TB READ - EXTERNAL CLINIC 50.00 50.00

OK-LEVEL 1 EXAM with provider 5  40.00 5  40.00

OH-TB VACCINATION W/EXAM 5  9.00 5  9.00

OH-SPIROMETRY W/INTERPRETATION 5  60.00 5  60.00

OH-LEVEL 1 EXAM with provider • FACILITY 5  20.00 5  20.00

Drug Screen using NHH Medical Director n/a 5  62.50

DOT PE W/URINE n/a 5  75.00

DOT DRUG SCREEN n/a 5  62.50

Non-DOT PE n/a S  60.00

Non-DOT DRUG SCREEN n/a 5  62.50

PRE-PIACEMENTLIFT n/a 5  58.00

PRE-PIACEMENT RN n/a 5  45.00

RN CLEARANCE n/a 5  10.00

FIT TESTING n/a 5  43.00

TBW/EXAM n/a 5  16.20

TBW/OEXAM n/a 5  21.70

Concord Hospital
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Laboratory and Pathology Services and

Employee Health Services

Exhibit B-4

Occupational Health Services and Costs

URINE DIP n/a $  10.00
TdaP* n/a S  56.00

TdTOXOID* n/a S  47.50
HEPATITIS B* n/a S  70.50
INFLUENZA* n/a S  36.50
MMR* n/a $  83.50
RABIES* n/a S  351.50
VARICELLA* n/a S  137.50
VENIPUNaURE n/a S  15.50
HEPATITIS BTITER n/a S  25.00

HIV n/a S  25.00
MEASLES TITER n/a S  25.00

MUMPS TITER n/a S  25.00

RUBELLA TITER n/a 5  20.11
RABIES TTTER n/a 5  91.25
VARICELU TITER n/a 5  25.00

*AII Injections include the injection fee in the price.

Concord Hospital
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Jeffrey A. Meyen
Commissioner

Robert J. MscLeod

Chief Executive Officer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

36 CUNTON STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-6300 1-800-S52-3346 Ext 6300

Fax:603-271-5845 TDD Acoese: 1-800-73&-2964 www.(Uihs.iih.Kov

June 28, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to amend an existing agreement
with Concord Hospital, Inc. (Vendor # 177653-B003), 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301, for
the provision of laboratory, pathology and employee health services for the Division of Public'Health
Services employees by increasing the price limitation by $10,000 from $645,000 to $655,000,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval with no change to the contract end date of
June 30, 2017, originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 22, 2015, Item
#22. Additional $10,000 is 100% Federal funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2017.

054)95-940010-87500000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES. HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE
PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

Decrease

Modified

Amount

2015 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $129,000 $0 $129,000

2016 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $258,000 $0 $258,000

2017 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $258,000 $0 $258,000

SubTotal $645,000 $0 $645,000

05-95-90-90-902510-5084 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS - EBOLA

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/ Object Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

Decrease

Modified

Amount

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027030 $0 $10,000 $10,000

SubTotal $0 $f0,000 $10,000

Total $645,000 $10,000 $655,000



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing agreement to include Division of Public
Health Services employees. The agreement currently provides health sen/ices for New Hampshire
Hospital employees, which are necessary for public health employees due to the possible exposures
to various biological agents and/or chemicals and health hazards encountered while completing their
daily job duties.

The health services provided by the vendor include screenings and testing for chemical
exposure, infectious and communicable diseases and/or recognized illnesses such as Hepatitis B,
Mumps and drug resistant Tuberculosis. Services also include offering Immunizations to employees
when necessary.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request. Public
Health employees and the people they come into contact with would not have access to screenings
and testing for the possible exposure to the health hazards they routinely encounter in their work
environment. Area Served: Statewide

Source'of Funds: 41% Other Funds (Medicare, Medlcaid & third party insurance). 25%
Genera! Funds and 34% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medlcaid Services, Medical Assistance Program, Code of Federal
Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA) 93,778, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) NH 20144
and for DPHS: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.074, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) U90TP000535.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, no further general funds will be
requested to support this contract.

Respectfully Submitted.

Tobert J. MacLeod '

Chief Executive Officer

New Hampshire Hospital

Marcella J. Bobinsky
Acting Director
Division of Public Health Services

Approved by:

Je^ey A. Mayers f
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampehlre Department of Health and Human Servicee
Laboratory and Pathology Servicee and Employee Health Servicee

State of New Hampshire
Departrnent of Health and Human Servicee

Amer>dment PI to the Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Servicee Contract

This first (l") Amendment to the Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services -
contract (hereinafter referred.to as "Amendment #1") dated this 22"^ day of February 2016, Is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health arnl Human Services (hereinafter referred to
as the "State" or "Department") and Concord Hospital (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 250 Pleasant Street. Concord NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 22, 2015 (Item #22). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 18, "This agreement may t>€ amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval
of such amendment by Governor and Executive Coundl of the State of New Hampshire"; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to amend the Scope of Work, amendment the Method and Conditions
Precedent to Payment, and increase the price limitation;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows;

To amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Item 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$655,000

2. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Paragraph 3.18.4. to read:

3.18.4. Continuirtg education conferences of interest, which are held, at Concord Hospital for the
physician community, nursing community and/or the infection prevention practitioner.

3. Delete and Replace. Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Paragraph 4. Employee Health Services with
the fbllowing:

4. Employee Health Servlcea

The Contractor shall provide employee health services, for the New Hampshire Hospital and the
Division of Public Health Services, which include but are not limited to:

4.1. Complying with employee health policies in accordance with Occupational Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA), blood borne pathogen standards and U.S. Public Health
Services guidelines.

4.2. Screening employees for communicable and infectious diseases, as requested by the
New Hampshire Hospital and/or the Division of Public Health Services, including but not
limited to:

4.2.1. Hepatitis B,

4.2.2. Measles,

4.2.3. Mumps.

4.2.4. Pertussis,

4.2.5. Rabies,

4.2.6. Rubella,

4.2.7. Tuberculosis, and

4.2.8. Varicella.

Concord Hospital
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

4.3. Screening employees for occupational exposure to chemicals, including but not limited to,
heavy metals, lead, etc.

4.4. Referring employees showing any signs of potential added risk In the performance of
.  their job duties to their Personal Care Physician.

4.5. Conducting pre-placement and/or physical screening, as appropriate, including but not
limited to;

4.5.1. Medical and occupational history review,

4.5.2. Respirator medical clearance exams, and

4.5.3. Visual color discrimination exams.

4.6. Conducting physical capacity exams, as appropriate that shall not duplicate exams
performed under the workers' compensation program for:

4.6.1. Newly transferred employees:

4.6.2. New employees;

4.6.3. Those returning after Injury or major illness: and ^

4.6.4. Employees with performance problems, as requested by the New Hampshire
Hospital and/or the Division of Public Health Services.

4.7. Providing Immunization or screening in accordance with Occupational Safety Health
Administration (OSHA) blood borne pathogen standard and with the CDC
recommendations regarding the Immunization of Health Care Workers.

4.8. Providing immunizations against diseaises, per request of the New Hampshire Hospital
and/or the Division of Public Health Services, including but not limited to the ones listed in
4.2.

4.9. Following<up exposures to blood borne pathogens, infectious and communicable
diseases, and other health exposures, as requested by the New Hampshire Hospital
and/or Division of Public Health Services.

4.10. Providing chest radiographic services for employees who present with a positive
Tuberculin Skin Test (TST).

4.11. Forwarding all of the aforementioned documentation for New Hampshire Hospital
employees to the New Hampshire Hosprtal's Human Resources Department at 36 Clinton
Street, Concord NH 03301.

4.12. Forwarding all of the aforementioned documentation for Division of Public Health
. Services employees to the Administrator II at the Department of Health and Human
Services, Human Resources, 129 Pleasant Street. Concord NH 03301.

4.13. Providing access and the ability to collect and print lab results.

4.14. Attending quarterly meetings with New Hampshire Hospital Infection Prevention.

4.15. Maintaining current health records on all referrals from the New Hampshire Hospital and
the Division of Public Health Services. Records shall contain at minimum;

4.15.1. Verification of all services requested: and

4.15.2. Result/findings of the above request {including any declination forms).

Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Paragraph 5.1.3 to read;

5.1.3. Have certification, training regarding blood borne pathogens {in accordance to the OSHA
blood borne pathogen standard) and competency to perform the duties In Sections 3 and
4 of the Scope of Services.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Lat>oratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

5. Delete and Replace Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Paragraph 6. Reporting with the following:

6. Reporting

6.1 The Contractor shall submit a quarterly Specimen Collection Quality Assurance Report.
Copies of the report shall be sent via email to the Director of Standards and Quality
Management, the Infection Prevention Practitioner and the Hospital Clinical Laboratory
Liaison at NHH, and shall include:

6.1.1 The number of each test and profile performed:

6.1.2 A list, by patient, of the tests or profiles completed;

6.1.3 A list, by practitioner, of tests and profiles ordered

6.1.4 A list, by dates and times, of the additional courier call-backs, and the associated
costs;

6.1.5 A list, by patient, of all rejected specimens; and

6.1.6 Other reports upon request, e.g., a summary of reported issues.

6.2 The Contractor shall provide a minimum of ten (10) copies of the Specimen Collection
Manual one to each of the six (6) patient care units, and others, as designated, with
updates as necessary at no additional cost to the New Hampshire Hospital.

6.2.1 one copy shall be sent via e-mail to the New Hampshire Hospital Infection
Prevention Department.

6.2.2 any infection prevention communication shall be sent via email to the Infection
Prevention Department.

6.3 The Contractor shall provide a quarterly statistical summary of all Employee and
Occupational Health Services to the NHH Human Resource Coordinator II and to
Administrator II at DHHS, Human Resources, which shall include but not be limited to:

6.3.1 Name of Employee;

6.3.2 Date of service;

6.3.3 Type of test (e.g. pre-hlre. physical capacity, worker's compensation return to
work etc.);

6.3.4 Immunization type; and

6.3.5 the cost.

6. Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 1 to read: ^

1, This contract Is funded with a combination of federal funds and general funds anticipated to
be available based upon continued appropriation.

1.1. Funds are conditioned upon continued support of the program by the stale and federal
governments.

1.2. Department access to supporting federal funding is dependent upon the selected
Contractor meeting the requirements in accordance with the;

1.2.1. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. Medical Assistance Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA #) 93.778, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN),
NH20144.

1.2.2. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.074.
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) U90TP000535.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

7. Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 5 to read;

5. Payment for Employee Health Services shall be paid to the contractor within thirty (30) days
upon receipt of the rrionthly invoice and approval of New Hampshire'Hospital's financial
officer or designee for New Hampshire Hospital employees or the Division of Public Health
Service's financial officer or designee.

8. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 5.1.6:

5.1.6 Visual color discrimination exams (no additional charge is part of the exam)

9. Add Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 5.1.7;

5.1.7 Screening employees for occupational exposure to chemicals, including but not limited to
heavy metals, lead, etc.

5.1.7.1 9150 Mercury. Blood $26.20

5.1.7.2 9152 Arsenic. Blood $31.00

5.1.7.3 9171 Lead. Blood (Venous) $21.00

5.1.7.4 9759 Zinc Protoporphyrin $55.20

10. Add Exhibit B. Miethod and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 5.2.7:

5.2.7 Mumps. Measles and Rubella (single mumps vaccine not available in U.S.) $66.00

11. Add Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 5.2.8:

5.2.8 Rabies (generally requires 3 injections) $337.00 (per injection)

12. Add Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph 5.2.9.

5.2.9 Injection fee is added whenever an injection, immunization is given $14.50

13. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 5.5:

5.5. Other injection, immunizations and screenings not listed above or on Exhibit B-1, as pre-
approved by the New Hampshire Hospital's Administrator of Patient Care Services
(Director of Nursing) or Designee and/or the Division of Public Services' Chief. Infectious
Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section. Bureau of Infectious Disease
Control, or Bureau (3hief, Bureau of Laboratory'Services, or Designees.

14. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph 5.6:

5.6 The monthly invoice shall contain:

5.6.1 Name of Employee;

5.6.2 Date of service;

5.6.3 Type of test (e.g. pre-hire, physical capacity, worker's compensation return to
work etc.):

5.6.4 Immunization type; and

5.6.5 The cost.

Concord Hospital
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

15. Add Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Paragraph 5.7;

5.7 The monthly invoices shall be sent to the following addresses listed in 5.7.1 and 5.7.2:
dependent on requesting party.

5.7.1 New Hampshire Hospital Financial Services
36 Clinton Street

Concord NH 03301

5.7.2 Division of Public Health Services

Financial Administrator

Bureau of Infectious Disease Control (BIDC)
29 Hazen Drive

Concord NH 03301

Concord Hospital
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Oat obe acSeod

Chef Executive Officer

New Hampshire Hospital

7/ ?hi
Date ■'

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Marcella J. Bobinsk)
Acting Director
Division of Public Health Services

Date
/A

Concord Hospital

J*-
a ceo

Acknowli
State
undersigned onicer, personally appeared the person identiried ̂ ove, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.
Siopekire of f*4olary Public or Justice of the Peace

before the
signed officer personally appeared the person identified ̂ ove, or satisfactorily proven to be

Notary e Peaceame an sti 1  \ %2  I EXPtRES^

Concord Hospital
AmefKlment
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date I j
Z

AName;

Title:
iA/i

t
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Goverder and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

Concord Hospital
Amendments
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-A/
STATE OF NEW HAMPS^g^ ,

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SErI'kSiSP
NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

NicboUi A. TouapM
CoooiMiOMr

Robert J. MacLeod

ChiefEzecutive Officer

36 CLINTON STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-2713300 1-800-652:3345 Ext. 3300

Pax-603-271-3843 TOD Acc«m: 1-800-733-2964 »v«.dhha.nb.r>v

March 16. 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital to enter
into a retroactive agreement with Concord Hospital, Inc. (Vendor # 177653-B003), 250 Pleasant
Street, Concord, NH 03301, for the provision of Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee
Health Services in the amount not to exceed $645,000, effective retroactive to January 1, 2015 upon
Govemor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2017. This request is funded with 42 %
Other Funds (Medicare. Medicaid & third parly Insurance). 27 % General Funds and 31 % Federal
Funds.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2015 and are anticipated to be available in the
following account in State Fiscal Year 2016 and State Fiscal Year 2017 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget with the ability to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, through the Budget office if needed and justified.

05-095-940010^750000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL. NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE
PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

SFY 2015 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $129,000

SFY 2016 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $258,000'

SFY 2017 101-500729 Medical Providers 94057300 $258,000

Total $645,000

EXPLANATION

This is a retroactive request because the initial Request for Proposals, posted in August, did
not result in any qualified proposals. The Request for Proposals was revised and reposted in October
with a closing date In November. The Department and the vendor were unable to finalize the contract
terms prior to the contract expiration date.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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Laboratory and Pathology Services include autopsy services, routine and special testing of
blood samples to detect disease and other medical problems that affect the health of New Hampshire
Hospital's patients. Patients at New Hampshire Hospital require the unique and specific laboratory
tests that are required prior to prescription of psychoactlve medicines and the ongoing monitoring of
blood levels of these medicines, which Is a necessary part of treatment for mental Illness. In order to
provide quality patient care these required services need to be fast and efficient.

Employee Health Services are essential due to the following factors: 1) remaining compliant
with the American vwth Disabilities Act (ADA; 2) reducing the high cost of workers' compensation
claims for conditions such as repetitive motion syndrome, str^ess related illnesses, and lifting injuries
involving backs, shoulders, and knees; and 3) Screening for other communicable
diseases/recognized Illnesses such as Hepatitis B, Mumps, and drug resistant Tuberculosis.

New Hampshire Hospital does not have its own laboratory. Due to the volume of admissions
per year of complex patients with both psychiatric and co-existing medical conditions, and the need to
provide job related testing to employees the demand for acute, reliable and timely testing of blood
and other body fluids is critical.

This contract was competitively bid. On August 1, 2014 and October 7. 2014 the Department Issued
a Request for Proposals to solicit proposals from orgariizatlons/companles for the provision of
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee and Occupational Health Sen/Ices. The request
for proposals was available on the Department of Health and Human Services website from August 1,
2014 through August 11. 2014 and from October 16, 2014 through November 14, 2014. There were
two proposals submitted.

The proposals were evaluated by a team of Department of Health and Human Services
employees with knowledge of (he laboratory and pathology services and the employee and
occupational health services at New Hampshire Hospital. The team also Included staff with
significant business and management expertise.

The proposals were evaluated based on the criteria published In the Request for Proposals.
Concord Hospital was selected. The bid summary Is attached.

The attached contract calls for the provision of these services for two.and one half years and
reserves the right to renew the agreement for up to two additional years, based upon satisfactory
delivery of services, continued availability of support funds, and Governor and Executive Council
approval.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, there is
potential for patient medical services to be billed at significantly higher costs, patient care may be
compromised as New Hampshire Hospital does not have the specialized resources to perform these
services, and patient and employee health may be compromised if newly hired staff are not properly
screened for communicable diseases and illnesses.
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Area Served: New Hampshire Hospital, Concord, NH

Source of Furxfs: 42 % Other Funds (Medicare, Medicaid & third party insurance), 27 %
General Funds and 31 % Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Health ar^ Human ̂ rvices.
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program, Code of Federal
Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA) 93.778, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) NH
20144.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, no further gerteral funds will be
requested to support this contract.

Respectfully Submitted,

Robert J. MacLeod

Chief Executive Officer

Approved by

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Depahmeni of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Laboratory and Pathology Sarvicaa and
Employee and OcupatJonal Health Senrkes

RFP Name

15-0HHS-DCBCS-NHH-11

RFP Number

1.

2.

Bidder Name

Catholic Medical Center

Concord Hospital

3.

4.

5.

Paaa/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

100 52

100 62

100 0

100 0

100 0

Reviewer Names
BlaneTOrTTTrsin^^oofdinetor^
NHH (Tech)

2.
Oiane Viger. Nursing Coordinator.
NHH (Tech)
Suzanne Belanger, Nursing

3- Coordinator. NHH (Tech)

Donna Ferland. Finance

Administrator. NHH (Cost)

5.
Ed Lovepy. Business
Administrator. 060 (Cost)

PNlip J. Nadeau. Financial

Analyst, OBO (Cost)

7.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603-271.1516 TDD Access: l-60O.73S.2964

www.f\h.gov/doit

Steven J. Kelleher

Acting Commissioner

February 13, 2015

Nicholas Toumpas, Commissioner
State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street ,

Concord, NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Toumpas:

This letter represents formal notiHcation that the Department of Information Technology
(DoIT) has approved your agency's request to enter into an agreement for the provision of
Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee and Occupational Health Services for the
benefit of the Department of Health and Human Services with Concord Hospital as described
below and referenced as DoIT No. 2015-075.

Concord Hospital, shall provide reliable and timely testing of blood and body
fluids. The Concord Hospital will also provide access and the ability to collect
and print lab results on-line at no additional cost to the Hospital. Additionally,
Concord Hospital will ensure that data is provided to the New Hampshire Hospital
by compact disc and in sufficient detail for the Hospital to bill Medicare,
Medicaid or other payers. The Contract will be effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval retroactive to January I, 2015 through June 30, 2017.
Contract total amount is $645,000.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely.

yM
Steven J. Kelleher

SJK/mh

DoIT No. 2015-075

cc: Ruth Eisman, DHHS
Leslie Mason, BFA Contracts Unit



Subject;

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Uboraiorv and Pathology Services and Emblovee and Occupational Health Services

AGREEMENT

The StaieofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTinCATlON.

I. I State Ageacy Name

Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord Nl 103301

IJ Contractor Name

Concord Hospital

1.4 Contractor Address

250 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Nonber

603-225-2711

1.6 Account Number

05-095-094-940010-

87500000-101-500729-

94029200

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2017

1.8 Prke Limitation

S645.000

1.9 ContractiogOfTicer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10 State Agency Telephene Number

603-271-9558

l.ll Contractor Signature

/ 4

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowledgement: State . County

the undersized ofllcer, personalty appeared the person ideniined in satisraciorlly proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11.,and acknowledged that s/hc executed capacity indicated in block

"2
m1.13.1 Signature ofNojpry Public or Justice of the Peace

{Seal]

\ I
=  : : S

I \ I
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

1.14 Slate Agency Signature

Approval by Ibe N.H. Departnmit of A

I.IS Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

)e?oi,ccr QT- M*rL-Lt»oTi CQiP
1.16 Approval by Ibe N.H. Departnf^nt of Administration, Division of Personnel (Ifcpptlcab/e)

By; Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the i^tomey..GeneraI (Form, Substance and Execution)

: toV1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: ^ . On:

Page I of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the agency identilled in block I.I ("Slate"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

y effective date/completion of services.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, artd subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and

Executive Council approve this Agreement ("EfTeciive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Conlrutor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
comingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
p^mems hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate (his Agreement immediately upon
giving ifte Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event fiinds in that

Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
pay-ment are identified and more particularly described in
EJOilBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to (he Contractor other than the contract
price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
S0;7 through RSA S0:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, iri
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in blo^
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duly upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all'
applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not disaiminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afDrmaiive salon to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.P.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States Issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Suie or United States access to any of the *
Coniraaor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide ail
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this AgreemenL and for a period of six (6) montb after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subconiraaor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is i State
employee or olTicia), who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or perfonrance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpraaiion of this Agreement,
the Coniraciing OITicer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

fage2or4
Contraaor Iniiials



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or nv>re of the following acts or omissions of the
Coniraaor shall constitute an event ofdefauli hereunder
{"Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satbfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 (allure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may lake any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence ofa greater or lesser spectficaiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wriaen notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the podion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Sute may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or In equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidenlialityofdaia shall be governed by N.H. KSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the Sute.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of-
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall ddiver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (13) days after the date of
tenninatlon, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
desaibed in the attached EXHIBIT A^

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of (his Agreement the Contractor is In all
respects an independent contractor, and is neiiha an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, worken' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its eir^oyees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrinen consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the Stale.

13. INOEMNIFlCAtlON. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its officers and
employees, from and against any and ail losses suffered by the
Stale, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Sute. its officers
and employees, by or on behal f of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithsunding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiverofihe

sovereign immunity of the Sute, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Sute. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at Its sole expense, obuin and
mainuin in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and mainUin in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against'ali
claims of b^iiy injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than {250,000 per claim and {2,000.(X)0 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage Insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value ofthe property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsemenu approved for use in the
Sute of New Hampshire by the N.H. OepartrTrenl of
Insurance, and Issued by insurers licensed In the Sute ofNew
Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurarKe for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s)of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (IS) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the Insurance policies. The
cenificaiels) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
atuched and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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ceTtiricate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1,9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modincaiion
of the policy.

IS. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15. I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subc^tractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undoiike pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
(he Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, prtwf of Workers' Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any applicable
renewaKs) (hereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Sute shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workm' Compensation
proniums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which m ight
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of E)cfauit. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
timeofmailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OfTlce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Courtdl of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify,'amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herdn
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provbtons of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining
provisions ofthis Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health ar>d Human Services
New Hampshire Hospital

Laboratory and Pathology Services arnl Employee Health Services

Exhibit A
V,

Scope of Services

1. The Contractor will perform all laboratory and pathology services required by New
Hampshire Hospital (the Hospital) including autopsy services and provide employee and

occupational health services.

2. The contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they

will provide to persons with limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services.

3. Laboratory and Pathology Services:

3.1. The Contractor shall provide all pathology and laboratory services, which include
laboratory services referenced, that meet the requirements of The Joint Commission,
the Cjinlcal Laboratory improvement Act of 1988 (CLIA), as amended, or any other
applicable accrediting bodies.

3.2. The Contractor shall notify the Hospital In writing within five (5) working days after
receiving notification that;

3.2.1. Any of the above-mentioned services do not meet these requirements; or

3.2.2. The Contractor as a whole did not meet The Joint Commission or any other

applicable accrediting agericies requirements.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide all consumable supplies necessary to conduct all tests
described in this contract, at no additional cost to the Hospital.

3.3.1. Materials may be ordered on the supply order form or by phoning the laboratory
directly.

3.3.1.1. Materials will be delivered on the next courier run after the receipt of the
request.

3.4. The Contractor shall perform all pathology and laboratory services at the
Contractor's facility or a reference laboratory that meets the aforementioned
requirements. The Contractor shall notify the Hospital of any change in reference
laboratories.

3.5. The Contractor shall be responsible for the following frequency of lab tests,
performance, and pick- ups:

3.5.1. Routine tests are to be performed once daily, potentially seven (7) days per
week, except for chemistry profiles on Thanksgiving. Christmas, and New Year's
Day;

3.5.2. Routine surgical pathology is to be completed daily, Monday through Friday;

3.5.3. ST AT specimens shall be picked up upon request, at the Hospital specified
locations, via courier as needed twenty-four (24) hours per day. seven (7) days

NH OHHS

Concord Hospital
Laboratory and Patbology Services and Employee Health Services
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Hospital

Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

Exhibit A

per week. The HospHai shall pay the Corrtractor $25.00 per visit for STAT pick
ups that fall outside the routine and additional pick-up times as specifted below.

3.5.4. All STAT tests are to be performed within one (1) hour of receipt of specimen.

3.5.5. Routine pick-ups for specimens up to three (3) times per day. Monday through
Friday, at 6:30 am, 11:30 am, and 4:00 pm and one <1) routine pick-up on
Saturdays;

3.5.5.1. No routine pick-ups on major holidays:

3.5.5.1.1. New Year's Day;

3.5.5.1.2. . Memorial Day;

3.5.5.1.3. Independence Day;

3.5.5.1.4. Labor Day;

3.5.5.1.5. Thanksgiving Day; and

3.5.5.1.6. Christmas Day.

3.5.6. Additional pick-ups for specimens shall be ntade at 2:30 p.m., Monday through

Friday and 9:00 a.m., based on telephone calls notifying the Contractor that the
specimens are ready.

3.6. The Contractor shall determine through visual inspection prior to testing a specimen
whether its' handling is in compliance with protocol and valid test results are
possible. When a spedmen is rejected;

3.6.1. The Contractor shall not conduct that test and must immediately notify the
appropriate Hospital patient care unit; and

3.6.2. Notify the Hospital's dinicai laboratory liaison, each month, through the
established reporting process with the reason for rejection.

3.7. The Contractor shall perform routine assays on the day of spedmen receipt.

3.7.1. The Contractor shall deliver results to the Hospital by 4:00 p.m. that same day.

3.7.2. STAT testing is reported within one (1) hours of receipt at the contractor's lab.

3.7.3. Printed copies of alt laboratory results shall be forwarded to the appropriate
dinidan for review and to the Infection Control Practitioner (ICP).

3.7.4. Turn- around time shall be maintained in a manner suitable to the dinicai

situation In which the tests are requested.

3.8. . The Contractor shall provide autopsy services, seven (7) days per week, including

but not limited to;

3.8.1. A pathologist on call seven <7) days per week;

NHOHHS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Hospital

Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

Exhibit A

3.6.2. Delivery and pickup of the rerhalns through a local licensed funeral home;

3.8.3. A provisional anatomic diagnosis within seventy-two (72) hours; and

3.8.4. A complete report and diagnosis provided to the Mospital within sixty (60) days.

3.9. The Contractor shall perform and report emergency or abnormal test results or

others requested by a physician:

3.9.1. In a timely fashion consistent with clinical appropriateness;

3.9.1.1. Critical results vrill be called with fifteen (15) minutes of verification.

3.9.2. To the patient care unit or directly to the practitioner by;

3.9.2.1. Calling and/or faxing, except on we^ends; and

3.9.2.2. Followed by printed copies for the medical record.

3.10. The Contractor shall report laboratory results on a standard form approved by the
Hospital which includes:

3.10.1. The date and time a specimen was collected;

3.10.2. The date and time a specimen was received by the laboratory ar>d completed;

3.10.3. The technologist's initials; ar>d

3.10.4. The pathologist's review, where appropriate.

3.11. The Contractor shall provide access and the ability to collect and print lab results on
line at no additional cost to the Hospital^

3.11.1. Access to on-line latx)ratory results is through a secure Physician Portal.

3.11.2. The Contractor and the Hospital shall cooperate in the development of
enhancements to computerized reporting systems.

3.12. The Contractor shall notify the Infection Control Practitioner (ICP), within (1) wortiing
day, of any laboratory findings that indicate a disease reportabte to the NH Division
of Public Health Services.

3.13. The Contractor shall provide the antimicrobial susceptibility summary annually to the
Infection Control Practitioner (ICP).

3.14. The Contractor shall provide Phlebotomy services, including the transportation of
collected specimens at no additional cost to the Hospital on a mutually agreed

routine schedule to collect difficult draws.

3.15. The Contractor shall establish a standard of practice for obtaining and processing
specialized phlebotomy draws, such as, arterial blood gases, and ammonia blood
levels.

NH DHHS
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Hospital

Laboratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

Exhibit A

3.15.1. The Contractor will provide a Laboratory Services Handbook and on-line access
to the Hospital for standards of practice for specidlized phlebotomy draws.

3.16. The Contractor shall provide call back on STAT phlebotomy upx>n request and have
a charge as specifted in Exhibit B. The transporting of these STAT collected
specimens to the Contractor's laboratory shall be at no additional cost to the
Hospital.

3.16.1. Phlebotomlsts employed by the Contractor will perform a venipuncture for the

process of obtaining blood, from veins only.

3.16.2. Patients requiring arterial blood gasses shall be transported to Concord Hospital

for the arterial venipuncture by qualified staff from the Respiratory ITterapy

Department.

3.17. The Contractor shall perform therapeutic drug monitonng including active

metabolites on the foPowing list of substances.

3.17.1. Turn-around times shall range from twenty-four (24) hours to up to seven (7)

days from the time samples are received at the testing laboratory to the
forwarding of results.

3.17.1.1. All antipsychotic and antidepressant drug monitoring shall be through use

of High Performance Liquid Chromatographic (HPLC) techniques using

both ultraviolet and electro-chemical detection.

3.17.2. Laboratory methodology shall include;

3.17.2.1. Detection;

3.17.2.2. Identification; and measurement of psychoactive metabolites of all

samples submitted.

3.17.3. Levels of parent drug and relevant active metabolites shall be included in direct
and follow-up reports.

Antidepressant Drugs

Generic Name Trade Name Cost Tum Around Time

(business days)

Bupropion Wellbutrin $40.35 1-5

dtalopram Celexa $157.00 3-10

clomipramine Anafranil $42.00 5-8

duloxetine Cymbalta , $193.00 7-10

escitalopram Lexapro $163.69 3-10

fluoxetine Prozac $20.02 1-5

NH DHHS
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fluvoxamine Luvox $121.00 3-10

mirtazapine - Remeron $119.90 1-5

nefazodone Serzone $104.50 3-9

paroxeline Paxil $111.10 3-10

phenetzine
\

Nardll $536.00 3-10

sertratine Zoloft $60.98 1-5

tranylcypromlne Pamate $135.30 5-8

trazodone Desyrel $51.00 5-8

venlafaxine Effexor $275.00 5-8

Antipsychotic Drugs

Generic Name Trade Name Cost Turn Around Time

(business days)

artplprazoie Abllify $183.70 7-10

chlorpromazine Thorazine $60.68 1-5

clozaptne Clozarit $11.77 1-2

fluphenazine Prollxin $61.32 1-5

haloperidol ' Haldol $27.72 1-4

olaruaplne Zyprexa $70.84 1-5

Paiiperidone New per usage $25.69 1-5

perphenazine Trilafon $61.32 1-3

pimozide Orap $212.00 7-10

quetiapine Seroquel $124.30 1-5

risperldone Risperdal $100.00 3-10

thioridazine Mellaril $112.20 3-10

(hlothixene Navane $32.51 1-4

ziprasldone Geodon $131.00 3-10

NH OHHS
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Exhibit A

Mood Stabilizers

Generic Name Trade Name Cost Turn Around Time

(business days)

carbamazepine Tegretol $12.51 1-4

v/atproic add Depakote $11.64 1-4

gabapentin Neurontin $20.02 1-2

lamotrigine Lamictal $11.77 Within 24 hours

Lithium Lithobid $5.68? M

oxcarbazepine Trileptal $24.64 1-2

tiagabine Gabrtril $75.88 3-5

topiramate Topamax $39.48 Within 24 hours

3.18. The Contractor shall provide In-services training for nursing or other personnel at no
charge to the Hospital. This shall Include, but not t>e limited to:

3.18.1. Any changes related to laboratory services.

3.18.2. Education related to equipment supplied.

3.16.3. Any changes in collection practices.

3.16.4. Continuing education conferences of interest, which are held, at Concord

Hospital for the physician community.

3.19. The Contractor shall provide professional services for the Hospital Clinical Pathology
Conferences.

3.20. The Contractor shall provide up to six yearly continuing education conferences, as
agreed upon by the Hospital and the Contractor.

3.21. The Contractor shall supply appropriate requisition forms to the Hospital at no
.  additional cost.

3.22. The Contractor shall ensure that data provided to the Hospital is in a computerized
form and Is in suffident detail for the Hospital to bill Medicare. Medicaid or other
payors.

3.22.1. The Contractor will provide a compact disc with the following information for
billing purposes:

3.22.1.1. Patient name;

3.22.1.2. Date of service;
NH OHHS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Hospital

Laboratory arul Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

Exhibit A

3.22.1.3. New Hampshire Hospital Medical Record Number;

3.22.1.4. New Hampshire Hospitallocatlon,

3.22.1.5. CPT-4Code;

3.22.1.6. Diagnosis 1;

3.22.1.7. Diagnosis 2;

3.22.1.8. Description of service (test description and Concord Hospital order SIM
number);

3.22.1.9. Units of service performed;

3.22.1.10. Price and price extension; and

3.22.1.11. Ordering physician's name.

3.23. The Contractor shall meet with the Hospital once per quarter and as necessary to
discuss the quality and appropriateness of services and mutually resolve identified
problems.

3.24. The Contractor shall provide the Hospital with Information regarding the objective
criteria, such as. a quality control surveillance program, established to review and
monitor the services provided to the Hospital.

4. Employee Health Services

The Contractor shall provide employee health services which include but are not lirrvted to:

4.1. Complying with employee health policies In accordance with OSHA and U.S. Public
Health Services gukJelirtes.

4.2. Screening newly hired employees for communicable diseases.

4.3. Screening newly hired employees for measles, rubella, and varicella.

4.4. Referring newly hired employees showing any signs of potential added risk In the
performance of their job duties to their Personal Care Physician.

4.5. Conducting pre-placement physical screening, including medical and occupational
history review.

4.6. . Conducting physical capacity exams that shall not duplicate exams performed under

the workers' compensation program for:

4.6.1. Newly transferred employees;

4.6.2. New employees;

4.6.3. Those returning after injury or major illness; ar>d

4.6.4. As requested by Human Resources, employees with performance problems.

NH OHHS
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Exhibit A

4.7: Providing immunization or screening in accordance with Occupational Safety Health

Administration (OSHA) blood borne pathogen standard.

4.8. PoilovtAng^p exposures to blood borne pathogens as per the Hospital's request.

4.9. Providing chest radtographic services for enrtployees who present with a positive

Tuberculin Skin Test (TST).

4.9,1. Forwarding all of the aforementioned documentation to the New Hampshire

Hospital's Human Resources Department.

4.10. Providing access and the ability to collect and print lab results.

4.11. Attending quarterly meetings with NHH Infection Prevention and Employee
Prevention team.

4.12. Maintaining current health records on all consultants assigned to the NHH. Records
shall contain at minimum;

4.12.1. Verification of TST screening; or

4.12.2. Symptom review screening.

5. Staffing

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure that employees who will be present on the Hospital

campus:

5.1.1. Have documentation of a criminal background check, which demonstrates not
criminal offences;

5.1.2. Is available to complete a thirty (30) minute NHH orientation regarding patient
confidentiality and boundaries; and

5.1.3. Have certification and competency to perform the duties in Sections 3 and 4 of
the Scope of Services.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide documentation of 5.1. upon request of the Hospital.

6. Reporting

6.1. The Contractor shall submit a quarterly Specimen Collection Quality Assurance

Report. Copies of the report shall be sent via email to the Director of Standards and
Quality Management and the Hospital Clinical Laboratory Liaison, and shall include:

6.1.1. The number of each test and profile performed;

6.1.2. A list, by patient, of the tests or profiles completed;

6.1.3. A list, by practitioner, of tests and profiles ordered

6.1.4. A list, by dates and times, of the additional courier call-backs, and the associated
costs;

NHOHHS
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Laboratory an<3 Pathology Services and Employee Health Services X
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6.1.5. A list, by patient, of all rejected spectr7>ens; and

6.1.6. Other reports upon request, e.g., a sunvnary of reported issues.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of ten (10) copies of the Specimen

Collection Manual one to each of the eight (8) patient care units, and others, as

designated, with updates as necessary at no additional cost to the hospital.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide a quarterly statistical summary of all Employee and
Occupational Health Services to the NHH Human Resource Coordinator II , which

shall Include but not be limited to:

6.3.1. Name of Employee;

6.3.2. Date of ̂ rvice;

6.3.3. Type of test (e.g. pre-hire, physical capacity, worker's compensation return to

work etc.); and

6.3.4. Immunization type.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract Is funded with a combination of federal funds and general firds anticipated to be
-  available based upon continued appropriation. Funds are conditioned upon continued support of the

program by the state and federal governments. Department access to supporting federal ftjnding is
dependent upon the selected Contractor meeting the requirements in accordance with the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. Medical
Assistance Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFQA d) 93.778, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) NH20144.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37. Block
1.8. for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures.

4. ̂ Payment for Laboratory and Pathology services performed shall be paid to the contractor within thirty
(30) days upon receipt of the monthly invoice and approval of the Hospital's financial officer or
designee:

4.1. The monthly Invoice shall contain the following jnfbrmatfon:

4.1.1. Patient Name:

4.1.2. Date of scnrice;

4.!.3. Test performed:

4.1.4. Ordering practitioner; and

4.1.5. Test charge. rncJudir>g Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) number.

4.2. Cost of services shall agree with the fee schedule as listed on attachment (See Exhibit 8-1).

4.3. Laboratory sBps shall be mailed to the New Hampshire Hospital Billing Offlce monthly at;

New Hampshire Hospital Billing Office
38 Clinton Street

Concord NH 03301.

4.4. No less than monthly, the following biUir^gs summaries will be provided to the Hospital
Financial Services Office at the address listed below and Include the foDowing:

New Hampshire Hospital Financial Services
36 Clinton Street

Concord NH 03301

4.4.1. The number of each test and profile performed with the associated cost:

4.4.2. A list by patient/resident, of the tests or profiles completed and the costs associated vriih
each: ^

4.4.3. A list, by physician, of test and profiles ordered and their associated costs:

4.4.4. A list, by patient/resident, of the phlebotomy collections completed and the costs
associated with each: and

4.4.5. A list, by dates and times, of the additional courier call backs, and the associated costs.

5. Payment for Employee Health Services shall be paid to the contractor within thirty (30) days upon
receipt of the monthly invoice and approval of the Hospital's finanoal officer or designee.

5.1. Examinations/Screenings:

/
0ep«Vn«ni of HeaRh and Human Services Ejdiibit B Contractor irstiais
Concord Hoapf til
Laberaiory. Pathetogy and Employee Health Services Page 1 of 2

4^
Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Hoepttal
Latx)ratory and Pathology Services and Employee Health Services

-  Exhibit B

5.1.1. Pre-placement health screening including medical and occupational history review
$42.00

5.1.2. Pre-ptacement health screening & contract employee
5.1.3. If POP risk Is determined $52.00
5.1.4. Physical Capacity Exams $52.00
5.1.5. Chest X-ray $166.30

5.2. tr^ections, immunizations, and screening upon Hospital's request at the Contractor's FacHity
utilizing Contractor's Vaccine;

5.2.1. Hepatitis B vacdne & Injection

5.2.2. Measles

5.2.3. Rubella

5.2.4. Varicella

5.2.5. TB test

5.2.6. Venipuncture is added whenever lab draw performed

5.3. Respirator medical clearance exams:

5.3.1. Review of OSHA martdatory respirator questionnaire only.

5.3.2. Respirator medical dearance exam.

5.3.3. Respirator medical dearance exam with spiromet/y

5.3.4. Respirator fit test

5.4. Other services as required including:

5.4.1. Attending quarterly meetings with NHH Irrfection Prevention
and NHH Human Resources

5.4.2. Counseling

5.4.3. Written reports to Hospital management

5.4.4. STAT pick-ups (that fall outside the routine and additional
pick-up times as spedfied in Exhibit A, Section 3.5)

5.4.5. Routing Phlebotomy venipuncture

$64.50

$15.07

$16.32

$15.07

$12.50

$15.50

$10.00

$60.00

$126.00

$43.00

no additional cost

no additional cost

no additional cost

$25.00

$15.50

6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports, summaries, and updates as dellned in
Exhibit A.

7. ■ A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty days after the contact ends.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
contract may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of noncompUance with any State or Federal
law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

9. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

Oepstmem of Hestn tna Humtn S«n4ces Extibit B
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Exhibit B-1

Concord Hospital Lsboratorv

Fee Schedule SFYl5fSY16^SFYi7

nSTCGOE TEST DESCRIPTION SIM CPT SFY15-SFY17

ABO ABO Group 3800 86900 $  4.08

A8SG Antibody Screen 3010 86850 S  11.83

ACETA Acetaminophen 8302 82003 S  7.65

ACETN Acetone 8311 82009 $  5.28

ACTR Acetylcholine Rec Binding 900B 83519 S  42.74

AFBCX AFB Culture 4212 87116 S  12.63

AFBST AF6 Stain 4213 87206 5  6.28

ALB Albumin 7380 82040 S  5.78

ALCl Ethanol,Serum 8310 82055 S  12.63

ALDO Aldolase, Serum 9021 8208S S  14.18

ALDS Atdosterone, Serum 9024 82088 S  59.54

ALEAD Lead Adult. Blood. Quant 9484 83655 S  14.15

ALP Alk Phos 7390 84075 S  6.05

ALT ALT-S6PT 7115 84460 5  6.18

AMITR Amitrlptyllne and Nortriptyline. Serum 9052 ,  80152 S  26.15

AMMO Ammonia 7385 82140 S  17.03"

AMY Amylase 7200 82150 S  7.58

ANA ANA Screen (Reflex) 1230 86038 S  14.14

ANAER Anaerobe and Aerobe Culture 4950 87070 S  10.07

ANAT ANA Titer 1231 86039 S  15.30

APTT PTT 5155 85730 $  7.02

A5L1 SURG PATH. GROSS ONLY 2300 88300 S  16.38

ASL2 LEVEL 2 SURG PATH 2302 88302 S  35.07

ASL3 LEVEL 3 SURG PATH 2304 88304 S  43.25

ASL4 LEVEL 4 SURG PATH 2305 88305 S  56.06

ASL5 LEVEL 5 SURG PATH 2307 88307 S  112.42

ASL6 . LEVEL 6 SURG PATH 2309 88309 S  154.91

ASO ASO Antibody (Refiex) 1235 86063 $  6.75

AST AST-SGOT 7410 84450 S  6.05

B12 Vitamin B12 8720 82607 $  14.03

BENZO Bentodiazeplnes Profile 9028 80154 S  37.15

BLOOD Culture. Blood 1260 87040 S  12.07

BMP Basic Metabolic Panel 7417 80048 S  9.89

BNP NT-proBNP 7267 83880 $  39.68

BUN BUN 7340 84520 S  4.61

BUPRO Buproplon and Metabolite 9285 80299 $  40.35

CSAFl AFB Concentrate 4284 87015 S  7.81

CSAIl Anaerobe Isolation 4178 87075 S  11.06

CSANl Anaerobe ID 4218 87076 $  9.45

CSE21 Enzyme. Beta Lactamase 1537 87185 S  1.63

CSFCl Feces Aeromonas 4276 87046 S  11.03

CSFC2 Feces EColiOlS? 4278 87046 S  11.03

CSFC3 Feces Campyiobacter 4282 87046 S  11.03

CSFC4 Feces SaimShig • 4280 87045 S  11.03

CSFC5 Feces Shiga Toxin l 4327 87899 S  14.01

CSFC6 Feces Shiga Toxin 2 4328 87899 S  14.01

Contractor Initialslit



.  Exhibit 0-1

Concord Hospital Laboratory

Fee Schedule SFY15+SY16+SFY17

TESTCODE TEST DESCRIPTION SIM CRT SFY15-SFY17

C$GR1 Gradient 1 1536 87181 S 1.63

CSIDI Microbe 10 1 4126 87077 S 9.45

CSKBl KirbyBauer 1 4125 87184 S 8.06

CSMBl Min CIdal Cone 1 4177 87187 S 12.11

CSMCl MinlnhibConc 1 4176 87186 $ 10.10

CSOPl O&P Concentrate 4566 87177 s 10.39

CS0P2 O&P Trichrome 4567 87209 S 21.00

CS0P3 O&P Cryptosporldium 4568 87206 s 6.28

CSYTl Yeast ID 1 153S 87106 $ 12.07

C125 CA 125, Serum 9156 86304 s 24.33

CA Calcium 7320 82310 s 6.03

CA125 CA125, Serum 9156 -  86304 s 24.33

CALBK Follow-Up Actiorts 9795 NOCPT s 25.00

GARB Carbamazeplne 8303 80156 s 8.80

CBC02 CBC With Auto DIff 5140 85025 s 7.07

CBLK CELL BLOCK 2 305 88305 5 56.06

C0IF2 C. difficile Toxin, PCR 4317 87493 5 13.39

CEA CEA 8204 82378 S 19.40

CHLOF Chlorpromazine 9164 84022 $ 60.68

CHOL Cholesterol 7360 82465 s 5.09

CK CK.Total 7100 82550 s 7.61

CKISO CK.w/lsoenzyme 7101 82550 $ 7.61

CKMB CK-MB 7998 82553 s 9.06

CL Chloride 7003 82435 s 5.37

CLOMP Ciomipramine and Metabolite, Serum 9229 80299X2 $ 42.00

CLON Clonazepam, Serum 9083 80154 $ 27.02

CLOZ Clozapine, Serum 9228 80299 $ 11.77

CMP Comprehensive Metabolic Panel 7418 80053 s 12.35

C02 C02 7004 82374 s 5.00

COPRS Copper 9196 82525 s 14.50

CORA Cortlsol AM 8447 82533 5 19.05

CORP Cortlsol PM 8448 82533 s 19.05

CORR Cortlsol, Random 8449 82533 s 19.05

CORTF Cortlsol, Free 9369 82530 s 19.53

CREAT Creatlnine 7110 82565 s 5.99

CRP CRP 1345 86140 s 6.05

CRPT2 CRP liter 1346 86140 s 6.05

CSPOR Cryptosporldium 1531 87272 s 13.39

CTDNA Chlamydia trachomatis, DNA. SOA 9068 87491 5 30.00

08tL Bllirubin, Direct 7472 82248 s 5.87

DECAL DECALClFiCATlON 2311 88311 S 5.14

OESIP Oesipramlne, Serum 9249 80160 s 25.14

DIG Digoxin 8530 80162 s 15.52

DILAN Oilantin 8307 80185 s 15.49

EAR Culture, Ear 4359 87070 5 10.07

EBVED EBV Ab to Early Ag, IgG 9497 66663 s 15.34

11/5/2014
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Exhibit B-1

Concord Hospital Laboratory

Fee Schedule SFY15+SY16+SFY17

TESTCODE TEST DESCRIPTION SIM CRT SFYIS-SFVI?

ER/PR ER/PR Immunohlslochcmisiry, Each Antibody 2965 88360 S  49.18

EST2 Estradiol 8572 82670 $  32.66

EXSTD Cytopath, Smears, Extended Study 2931 88162 S  32.01

EYE Culture, Eye 4369 87070 S  10.07

FCHOL Fluid Cholesterol 7886 84999 5  3.75

F6 Iron 8551 83540 S  7.57

FECW Stain, Fecal WBC 4560 87205 S  4.99

FER Ferrftin 8495 82728 $  ̂.92

FLIPA Fluid LIpase 7888 83690 S  '9.71

FLUAC influenza Antigens, A & B 4330 87804 5  13.39

FOL Folate 8740 82746 5  17.19

FSH FSH 8811 83001 5  21.73

F73 Free T3 8513 84481 $  11.83

FT4 Free T4 8504 84439 S  10.55

F7AAB FTA-ABS 9501 86780 $  15.48

FTBIL Fluid Total Bilirubin 7889 82247 S  3.75

FTRIG Fluid TrlglycerWcs 7887 84478 5  4.28

FUNGS Culture, Fungus • Skin 4272 87101 S  9.02

FUNGX Culture, Fungus • Not Skin or Blood 4377 87102 5  9.81

GABA Gabapentinfneurontin) 9742 80299 S  20.08

GC_a Culture, GC 4390 87081 5  6.74

GENFT Culture, Genital 4395 87070 S  10.07

GENTR Gentamlcin,Random 8305 80170 5  19.16

GGTP GGTP 7130 82977 $  7.36

GIU Glucose 7020 82947 S  4.50

GRAM Stain, Gram 4420 87205 $  4.99

HAIC Hemogiobin AlC 8312 83036 $  11.34

HAIGM NepAIgM Antibody 8573 86709 S  13.16

HALDO Haloperldol (haldol) 9377 80173 S  27.72

HAPTO Haptoglobtn 9883 83010 S  14.71

HAVTL Hep A Antibody Total 8574 86708 S  14.48

HBABS Hep 6 Surface Antibody (Qua!) 8559 86706 5  12.55

HBAGC Hep B sAg,Conflrmatory 8577 87341 S  12.07

HBAGS Hep B Surface Antigen 8552 87340 S  12.07

HBCAB Hep B Core Ab,Total 8576 86704 S  14.09

HBGM Hep B Core IgM Ab 8575 86705 S  13.76

HBEAB Hepatitis Be Antibody 9412 86707 S  1353

HBEAG Hepatitis Be Antigen 9411 87350 S  13.47

HCG Beta HCG 8300 84702 5  . 15.39

HCPCR Hep C Viral RNA, PCR Ouant 9630 87522 5  98.74

HCT Ha 5153 85014 S  2.76

HCVAB Hep C Antibody 8578 86803 $  15.56

HDL HDL Cholesterol 7365 83718 S  8.37

HFP Hepatic Function Panel 7470 80076 S  9.55

HGB HGB 5154 85018 S  2.76

HGMP2 Hemogram w/ Platelet 5138 85027 S  5.56 j

Contractor initials ̂
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Exhibit B-1

Concord Hospital Laboratory

Fee Schedule SFY15*SY16^$FY17

TESTCQDE . tEST OESCRIPTION SIM .  CPT- • • .SFY15-S.FY17

HFVAB HIV-l/HIV-2 Ab Screen 7228 86703 S  18.36

HIVRN HIV-1 RNA, Quantitative, Real-Time PCR 9743 87536 S  98.74

HPABC Acute Hepatitis Panel 8579 80074 5  54.53

HSCRP High Sensitivity CRP 7392 86141 $  20.30

IBa TIBC 8548 33550 S  10.22

IMIPP Imlpramlne & Deslpramlne, Serum 9452 80174 S  25.14

INSLN Insulin,Total 9448 83525 S  25.50

lUMtC Urine Microscopic 6010 81015 $  3.55

KK Potassium 7002 84132 $  4.70

LAMOT lamotrlglne 9814 80299 S  11.77

LBLOT Lyme, Western Blot 1445 86617 $  56.10

LDH LDH 7400 83615 S  7.05

LEAOU Lead, Random Urine 9487 83655 $  14.15

LEAOY Lead, Biood, Pedlatric 9482 83655 $  14.15

LH LH 8810 83002 S  21.64

LI -Lithium 8206 80178 %  5.68

UPAS LIpase 7343 83690 S  8.05

LIPID Lipid Panel 7377 80061 S  15.66

lYTES Electrolytes 7010 8X51 S  7.18

MAIBR Microalbumin, Ux Random 7473 82043 $  6.32

MDIFF Manual Differential 5002 85X7 $  238

MERCY MercurY,Blood 9547 83825 $  30.86

MG Magnesium 7120 83735 $  6.85

MMAUR Methylmalonic Acid, Urine 9524 83921 S  35.74

MRSA. . . StaphylococcusAureus Culture 4462 87081 S  6.74

MSPOT Mononucleosis Screen 1449 86308 S  6.05

NA Sodium 7001 84295 S  5.44

NGDNA Neisseria gorK>rrhoede, DMA. SOA 9127 87591 S  30.x

NOROV Norovirus RT-PCR 9447 83907 S  20.20

NORTP Nortriptyline (Aventyl) 9588 80182 S  24.x

OCCBD Occult Blood, Stool 6015 ;  82272 S  3.80

OCCBS Occult Blood, Stool 6032 82270 5  3.80

OLANZ Olanzapine(Zyprexa} 9730 80299 $  70.84

OSMOL Osmolality.Serum 7225 83930 S  / 7.72

PAROX Paroxetine 9534 80299 s  111.10

PERPH Perphenazlne, Serum/Plasma 9604 84022 s  61.32

PHENB Phenobarbital, Serum 9373 80184 S  13.39

PHLBC Phlebotomy Collection 8992 36415 5  4.00

PHLCB Phlebotomy Call Back Fee 9718 NOCPT S  75.x

PHOS Phosphorus 7330 841X . S  . 5.54

PLTI PLT 5157 85049 S  4.57

PREAL Prealbumln 8775 84134 S  17.04

PREG HCG Serum, Qualitative 5208 84703 S  8.78

PRGST Progesterone 8571 84144 $  24.38

PRLC Prolactin 8212 84146 S  19.82

PROCF Protein C, Functional 9715 85303 S  91.80

11/5/2014
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Exhibit B-1

Concord Hospital Laboratory

Fee Schedule $fY15+SYl6+SfY17

TESTCOOE TEST DESCRIPTION SIM CPT SFYlS-SfYl?

PROLX Prolixtn (fluphenazlne) 9658 84022 S  61.32

PROSF Protein S, Functional 9716 85306 $  24.68

PROZC Fluoxetlne and Norfluoxetlne, Serum 9569 80299x2 $  20.02

PSA-P PSA, Prognostic 8526 84153 S  16.96

PSA-S PSA, Screening 7401 G0103 S  16.96

PTINR PT/)NR 5159 85610 S  4.S9

QUETl Quetiaplne(Seroquel) 9563 80299 $  124.30

RENAL Renal Function Par>el 7419 80069 S  10.14

RETIC Retic (Automated) 5158 85045 $  4.68

RF Rheumatoid Factor 1490 86430 $  6.63

RFT RF TIter 1491 86431 5  6.63

RH Rh Typing 3070 86901 S  3.49

RISPE Risperidone 9857 80299 5  100.00

RPR RPR 1500 86592 $  ̂ 4.99

RPRT RPR Tlter 1501 86593 $  5.14

RUBEL Rubella Immune Status 1510 86762 ' $  16.32

RUBEO Rubeola Immune Status 1512 86765 S  15.07

RUBIG Rubella Antibody IgG 9692 86762 $  16.83

SAL Salicylate 8301 80196 S  8.18

SCLER Scleroderm8(Scl-70)Ab 9081 86235 5  20.96

ESRA Sedimentation Rate, Automated 5152 85652 S  3.16

SERTR Sertraline(Zolofi} 9693 80299 $  60.98

SGIAR GlardIa 1531 87269 S  13.39

SMMAB Smooth Muscle Antibody 9078 83516 5  13.39

SPUTM Culture. Sputum 4530 87070 S  10.07

STRAG Strep Group A Antigen 4249 87880 $  10.20

STRPA Strep Group A Culture 4605 87081 $  6.74

T3' Total T3 8514 84480 S  14.50

T4 Thyroxlne,Total|T4) 8510 84436 S  6.74

TAIL Total Blllrubin 7210 82247 S  5.87

TEST Testosterone 8570 84403 S  30.17

TESTF Testosterone,Free,Serum 9405 84402 $  28.42

THEO Thecphvlline 8308 60198 S  16.54

THIOT Thiothixene(Navane) 9541 80299 S  32.51

THROT Culture, Throat 4600 87070 S  10.07

TIAGB Tjagablne(G8bltril) 9608 80299 S  75.88

TOPIR Topiramate 9868 80201 S  39.48

TP Total Protein 7370 84155 S  4.18

TPOAB Thyroid Peroxidase Ab 9085 86376 $  17.00

TRAZA Trazodone, Scrum 9758 80299 S  51.00

TRIG Trigiycerides 7125 84478 $  6.72

TRILE , Oxcarbazepine Metabolite 9569 80299 S  24.64

TROP Troponin I 8622 84484 5  11.51

TRSFN Transferrin 9755 84466 5  14.92

TSH TSH 8503 84443 $  14.43

TSIM6 Thyroid Stimulating Imm. 9203 84445 S  59.43

- Contractor initials
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Exhibit B-1

Concord Hospital Laboratory

Fee Schedule SFYlS-fSYl6+SFYl7

TESTCOOE TEST OESCRiPTlON SIM CPT SFY15-SFyi7.
TU T3 Uptake 8501 84479 6.74

UAB Utinalysis, Reflex 6001 81001 3.70

UALC, Alcohol, Urine 8327 80101 14.79

UAMP Amphetamines 8323 80101 16.10

UAMYC Timed Ux Amyiase 7560 82150 7.58

UAMYR Ux Amylase.Random 7550 82150 7.58

UBARB Barbiturates 8326 80101 16.10

UBENZ Benzodlazeplnes 8321 80101 16.10

UBIL Bilirubin 6006 81003 2.08 .

UBIO Occult Blood 6007 81003 2.08

UCAC 24hr Ux Calcium 7700 82340 7.05

UCCLR Creatlnine Clearance 7600 82575 2.57

UCLC 24hrUx Chloride 7540 82436 5.88

UCOC Cocaine 8322 80101 35.53

UCRE Creatlnine, Ux Ran 7474 82570 3.16

UCREC 24hr Ux Creatlnine 7570 82570 8.47

UDIP Urinalysis, Dipstick Only 6016 81003 2.25

UGLU Glucose 6004 81003 2.08

UHCG HCG Urine, Qualitative 5203 81025 7.40

UIBC IBC, Unconjugated 8548 83550 10.22

UKC 24hr UX Potassium 7529 84133 5.03

UKET Ketones 6005 81003 2.08

UMALC Ux Mlcroalbumln, Timed 7705 82043 6.32

UIV1ET Methamphetamlnes 9999 80101 10.71

UMIC Urine Microscopic 6010 81015 3.55

UMTD Methadone 8446 80101 10.71

UNAC . 24hr Ux Sodium 7528 84300 5.68

UOPI Opiates, Urine 8325 80101 34.17

UOS24 Osmolali(y,Ux,24 Hr 7785 83935 7.97

UOXY Oxycodone 8360 80101 10.71

UPCP Phencyclidine(PCP) 8320 80101 16.10

URIC Uric Acid, 7350 84550 5.28

URINE Urine Culture 4900 87086 7.50

uthc Cannablnolds(THC) 8324 80101 16.10

UTPC 24hr Ux Protein 7670 84156 4.18

UUNC 24hr Ux Urea Nitrogen ' 7541 84540 5.55

UURO Urobilinogen 6009 81003 2.08

UVOL Total Volume(mL) 8995 81050 3.50

UXCAR Ux Calcium,Random 7775 82340 7.05

uxaR Ux Chloride, Random 7540 82436 4.90

UXCRE Ux Creatin)ne,Random 7735 82570 6.05

UXKR Ux Potasslum,Random 7529 84133 4.90

UXNAR Ux Sodium,Random 7528 B4300 5.68

UXOSM Ux.Osmo(aiity,Random 7630 83935 7.97

UXTOX Urine Toxicology Screen 8400 80104 20.40

UXTPR Ux Protein,Random 7725 84156 4.18 , ,

M
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Exhibit B-1

Concord Hospital Laboratory

Fee Schedule SFY15+SY16+SFY17

reyrcooe TEST DESCRIPTION SIM CPT SFY15-SFY17
UXUNR Ux Urea Nitrogen,Random 7765 84540 %  S.55
VALP Valprolc Acid 8309 80164 S  I 11.64
VENLA Venlafaxine and Metabolite 9527 80299 S  275.00
VRE Culture, VRE 4917 87081 $  6.74
VZV-M VZV IgM Antibody 9380 86787 S  15.07
VZVtG Varicella IgG 1540 86787 $  15.07
VITD Vitamin 0,25-OH, total 7232 82306 S  15.30
WBC WBC Only 5156 85048 5  2.25
WOUND Culture, Wound 4935 87070 5  10.07
YSTS Yeast Culture-SkIn,Halr,Nall 4239 87101 S  9.02
VSTX Yeast Cufture-Not Skin or Blood 4238 87102 5  9.81
ZINCQ Zinc, Plasma 9822 84630 S  35.70

Morgue Fees

Morgue Use 1 External Autopsy Only 2551 $  30.39
Morgue Use 2 Full Autopsy 2552 $  325.79
Morgue Use 3 Autopsy with Micro 2553 S  325.79

'CPT Coding based on 2014 AMA CPT Code book

11/6/2014
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
EihibitC

SPECIAL PROVIStONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1. Compliance v/ith Federal and State Lbvm: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and

'  state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manrter of Determination: Bigibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: in addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Infonmation as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants ar>d agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to t9l out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a ts'v
hearing in accordar>ce with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sut>-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly ur>derstood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
arty purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made fOr expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such ser^ces.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time durir^ the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineiigitiie individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to: v
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs:

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Conliocler Initisis.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitt^ to determine the eligibility of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:./

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foRowing records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance vrith accounting procedures and practices wtvch sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptaUe to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, aO ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and oiders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in^ind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of appiication and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as presaibed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year, it Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordartce with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmentat Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compBance audits.
9.1. Audit and Re,view: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, ftte

Department, ;the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

to. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws arid the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disdosurei may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official.duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any pu^ose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient his
attorney or guardian.

M-Exhibit C - Sp*^l Provisiens Contriclor Inktals.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the follovnng reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

ail costs and non-ailowabie expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containir>g such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and ot^ectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Sanrlcas: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and ail the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed alter the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Rnai Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research repoits and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the foUowtng
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distr&Hition or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor wHh respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the servfcM at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said Bcense or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such Icense or permit. In connection vrith the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shaO
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the loul fire protection agency, and shall t>e in conformarKe with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or n>ore and has 50 or
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more employees, t1 will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certiteation Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than S25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit orgarrizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://wvrw.cjp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

t7. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 ar>d Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

COWTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO InPORM EMPLOYEES OP

WHtSTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efftciency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function($). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the sut>^ntractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foUowing:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function ^
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the sut>contrdCtor'8
perfonnance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exnibil C - StMcist Provisions Concrsdor Inilitis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve ail subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are identified, the Contractor shaO
taKe corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the foJtowIng terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL management GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: ShaD mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services attaining a compllabon of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any exbting federal funds available for these services.

Eitiibil C - Spedal Provisiom Comractor tnitials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provislcns of this contract, Conditionai Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. Ir>cluding without limilation. the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or avaiiability of funds affected by
any stale or .federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or avaiiability of fundihg'for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provid^ in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds, in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available fur>ds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in blocK 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor Nwitten notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 in the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreemient, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In tte event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitloned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish, a method of notifying clients .and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proceed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to U^e State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the contract for up to four additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Goveimorand Executive Council.
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CERTiFICATtON REOARDIWQ DRUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et Sep.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the folowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part il of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
ea^ grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government Mde suspension or debarment Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it wli or wilt continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement rnitifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and speclfyingihe actions that will be taken against employees for viotation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishlr>g an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees at)out
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee vmN
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the' employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherv^se receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working. urUess the Federal agency

E^Ul D-CettiSca<ion regsftfinQ Drug Free ConUador Initiate
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the foOowIng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the RehabHitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistarice or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or ioc^ heaflh.
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, dty, county, state, zip code) (list each iocabon)

Check D if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name;

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply vMth the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restricta'ons on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the followjr>g Certtfication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to f^edy Families under Title IV-A
'Chfld Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Se^ces Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title Vf
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The urvdersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wli be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Cor>9ress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment or
modification of any Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any fur>ds other than Federal appropriated fur^ds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or ernployee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sut>-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that alt sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
Nvas made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to flie the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Oat
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections l.tl and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will r>ot necessarily result in dental
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation vMD be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determnabon whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knov^gly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate tNs transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
v^om this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. {

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred,' 'suspended.* 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant.* 'person,* 'primary covered transaction." 'principal.* 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded,* as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Parl 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shad not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, IneligibHity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A partidpant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require estatriishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit f - Certitication Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Ir^tials MjA/
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irtformation of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
prir>cipals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeht, declared irieligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal departmerrt or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dva judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently ir>dlcted for otherwise criminally or dviDy charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three>year period preceding this appllcalion/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of hs knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this dause entitled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Volunta^ Exduslon - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," vwthout modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name;

f^ame: ^ola P SY^i£f
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAiTH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHI3TLEBLQWER PROTECTIONS

The Conlractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may Include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of I960 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which proWbits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires c^ain redptents to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 6672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under (his
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the CMI Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits redpienls of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the tiasis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohtoits recipients of Federal finar>cial
assistance from dscriminatir>g on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
senrices or benefits, in any program or activity:

- the Americans vwth Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; PoScies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws tor faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fimdamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R, pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for FaHh-Based
Organizations); and WhistleblONver protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whlstlet)lowcr Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in corviection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon ̂ ich reliance is placed v^en the
ager>cy awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government vride suspension or
debarment.

AA.ExhiM G
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
disolmination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natiorial origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the ftnding to the Offlce for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor tdentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name;

'  r^ame: fl^ff f.

EihibilG
Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental T<Aacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-CWIdren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity end used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
Of library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a Civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor kJcntirted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative askJeniiried in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificalion;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
vwth all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name;

Date Name:

-C€d

Exhibit H - Cinlflcstlon Rigarding Comraaor tniUatxM
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement ar>d "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aooreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g- 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TItteXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'IrKfividual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Sectlon164.501(g).

j. 'Prh/flcv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /A JI

3/2014 V EjiNWI Contf■etor liiitiili /(H /V
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the terrh "required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Defmitlons - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required'by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used Of further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance wrth the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has ah opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3m)t4 Eihtbill Coniriaor InilUlj JUL
Heallh Insurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health inforrhation has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HiPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExNbill Contractor IniEiJIs Ml-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
extract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wntten request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the 6usir>ess Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would.be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.526.

j. VWthIn ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI ,
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead resporKl to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. yVithln ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses ar>d disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business y .a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate mairttains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certif/ to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered EnUtv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or rtmitatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI nr^y be used or
disclosed by ̂ siness Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terrhs and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shail report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. Ail terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
yi4th respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. .i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Seor^atlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Ult

Afjn~
Signature of Authorized Representative

tentativeNarrte of Authorized Representat

Cx,a
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of the Contractcy

^nature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Dat?^ ^
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New Hampshire Department o1 Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIRCATION REQARDtWQ THE FEDERAL FUNDINQ ACCOUNTABtUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabilily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S25.000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to reporton
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the.FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
A. NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. LInique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability ar>d Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contract's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the followirig Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined alcove to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

ConiraclorName:

Date Name: P

EjeilbU J-Ctnific»lion Reg»idinB Fe<Jer»l Fuofling Conlrictor Inlllals
Accouniabltry And Transpvincy Act (FFATA) CompUsnee
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor tdentiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is; O 7" 3 ̂ *7 7 3^^
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loarts, grants, sui^grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, sut>contracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperathr^agreements?leratr^ag

^NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 at>ove is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
txjsiness or organization through periodic reports fUed under section 13(a) or lS(d) ol the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 76o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the followng:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount;

• Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUCMl/l 10'I)
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